
1

MEETING: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE: Wednesday 20th March, 2019

TIME: 3.00 pm

VENUE: Committee Room - Bootle Town Hall, Trinity Road,  Bootle, L20 7AE

Member

Councillor

Substitute

Councillor
Councillor Brennan (Chair)
Councillor Roche (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Blackburne
Councillor Cluskey
Councillor McGinnity
Councillor Pugh
Councillor John Sayers
Councillor Shaw
Councillor Anne Thompson
Councillor Sir Ron Watson

Councillor McKinley
Councillor Roscoe
Councillor Bradshaw
Councillor Brenda O'Brien
Councillor Marshall
Councillor Ashton
Councillor Killen
Councillor Daniel Lewis
Councillor Yvonne Sayers
Councillor Bliss

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Ruth Appleby
Democratic Services Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 2181
E-mail: ruth.appleby@sefton.gov.uk

  

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

This page is intentionally left blank.



3

A G E N D A

1.  Apologies for absence

2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or personal interest arises, which is not 
already included in their Register of Members' Interests, to 
declare any interests that relate to an item on the agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
he/she must withdraw from the meeting room, including from 
the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any item 
of business in which he/she has an interest, except where 
he/she is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of a 
dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest he/she must 
seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or staff member 
representing the Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting room, including 
from the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an interest or whether 
the Member can remain in the meeting or remain in the 
meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

3.  Minutes (Pages 5 - 10)
Minutes of the meeting held on 5 December 2018

4.  External Audit Planning Report 2018-2019 (Pages 11 - 
52)

Report of the Council's External Auditors - Ernst and Young 
LLP

5.  Local Government Audit Committee Briefing Paper (Pages 53 - 
66)

Report of the Council’s External Auditors – Ernst and Young 
LLP

6.  Local Government Ethical Standards (Pages 67 - 
80)

Report of the Head of Corporate Resources

7.  Revenue and Capital Budget Update - Treasury 
Management Position to January 2019

(Pages 81 - 
90)

Report of the Head of Corporate Resources



4

8.  Corporate Risk Management (Pages 91 - 
100)

Report of the Head of Corporate Resources

9.  Risk and Audit Service Performance Report (Pages 101 - 
130)

Report of the Head of Corporate Resources

10.  Internal Audit Charter and Audit Plan (Pages 131 - 
160)

Report of the Head of Corporate Resources

11.  CIPFA - Audit Committee Briefing Report (Pages 161 - 
174)

Briefing Report - Chartered Institute of Public Finance & 
Accountancy (CIPFA) 



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL-IN”

1

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, SOUTHPORT
ON  5 DECEMBER 2018

PRESENT: Councillor Roche (Vice Chair in the Chair)
Councillors Blackburne, Linda Cluskey, McGinnity, 
Pugh, John Sayers, Anne Thompson and 
Sir Ron Watson

29. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Brennan, Shaw and 
Daniel Lewis (Substitute for Councillor Shaw).

30. MRS LYN SHAW 

Councillor Pugh reported with sadness and regret on the recent death of 
Mrs Lyn Shaw, the wife of Councillor Simon Shaw.

RESOLVED:

That the thoughts and sincere condolences of the Audit and Governance 
Committee Members be extended to Councillor Shaw, his family and 
friends on their very sad loss. 

31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interest were received.

32. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 19 SEPTEMBER 2018 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 September 2018 be confirmed 
as a correct record.

33. LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUDIT COMMITTEE BRIEFING 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE- WEDNESDAY 5TH 
DECEMBER, 2018

2

The Committee considered a report submitted by the Council’s External 
Auditors – Ernst and Young (EY) LLP, providing a general briefing, 
primarily for information, for the Audit and Governance Committee on 
government and economic news; accounting, auditing and governance; 
regulation news; key questions for the Audit Committee; and links to 
further information.

Ms Caroline Davies (EY) presented the report, answered questions 
thereon and drew Members’ particular attention to the section near the end 
of the report on ‘Key questions for the Audit and Governance Committee’, 
relating to Brexit; CIPFA Financial Resilience Index; Consultation on the 
adoption of IFRS 16; Consultation on proposed statutory overrides for the 
new accounting standard - IFRS 9; LEP governance; Social Care; Social 
Housing; Transformation and EY cybersecurity strategies.

RESOLVED:

That the Local Government Audit Committee Briefing paper be noted.

34. ICT SECURITY POLICY 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Corporate Resources 
which sought approval for revised security policy documentation relating to 
the Council’s ICT estate.  The new policy documents have been produced 
to replace the existing Information and ICT Security Policy last updated in 
2017.

The report indicated that the new policy documentation was being 
introduced to streamline the current guidance documentation available for 
authorised users of Sefton’s ICT environment, as well as ensuring that the 
Council operates in line with industry standards for ICT Security 
Management.

The report provided three core policy documents for approval – Namely:

1. Agylisis Sefton MBC Partnership – Information Security 
Management System Policy 

2. Initial Security Management Plan
3. ICT Acceptable Use Policy.

The Senior Manager ICT and Digital presented the report and answered 
questions thereon.

RESOLVED: That 

(1) the three core revised ICT security policy documents be 
approved; and

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE- WEDNESDAY 5TH 
DECEMBER, 2018

3

(2) approval be given for internal publication of the ICT Acceptable 
Use Policy in January 2019.

35. TREASURY MANAGEMENT POSITION TO OCTOBER 2018 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Corporate Resources 
which provided a review of the Treasury Management activities 
undertaken to 31 October 2018.  This was the second of the ongoing 
quarterly monitoring reports provided to Audit and Governance Committee 
whose role it is to carry out scrutiny of treasury management policies and 
practices.

The Head of Corporate Resources and Service Manager Finance, 
presented the report and answered questions thereon.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the Treasury Management update to 31 October 2018 be noted; 
and

(2) the effects of decisions taken in pursuit of Treasury Management 
Strategy and the implications of changes resulting from 
regulatory, economic and market factors affecting the Council’s 
treasury management activities, be noted.

36. CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT 

Further to Minute No. 27 of 19 September 2018, the Committee 
considered the report of the Head of Corporate Resources on the updated 
Corporate Risk Register, indicating that since the last meeting the 
Corporate Risk Register had been fully updated with no risks closed, none 
de-escalated and four new risks identified. 

The report indicated that the Corporate Risk Management Handbook had 
also been updated and was presented for annual approval by the 
Committee.

The Chief Internal Auditor presented the report and answered questions 
thereon.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the contents of the Corporate Risk Register, particularly the 
nature of the major risks facing the Council and the controls and 
planned actions in place to mitigate these be noted; and

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE- WEDNESDAY 5TH 
DECEMBER, 2018

4

(2) the updated Corporate Risk Register be approved.

37. RISK AND AUDIT SERVICE: PERFORMANCE REPORT 

Further to Minute No. 26 of 19 September 2018, the Committee 
considered the report of Head of Corporate Resources which provided 
details of the performance and key activities of the Risk and Audit Service 
for the period 6 September to 21 November 2018.  Additional 
documentation requested at last meeting, providing explanations on the 
opinions used in the audit reports and details of insurance companies 
contracted by the Council was tabled at the meeting.

The Chief Internal Auditor presented the report and answered questions 
thereon. Members asked if officers could review the arrangements for how 
a value is attached to the art paintings, silverware and other artefacts 
housed in Bootle and Southport Town Halls.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the progress of in the delivery of the 2018/19 Internal Audit 
Plan and the activity undertaken for the period 6 September 
to 22 November 2018 be noted;

(2) the contributions made by the Health and Safety, Insurance 
and Risk and Resilience Teams in managing key risks be 
noted;
 

(3) the additional information on opinions used in audit reports 
and details of insurance companies contracted by the 
Council be noted; and

(4) the Head of Corporate Resources be requested to review 
the arrangements for valuing the art paintings, silverware 
and other artefacts located in Bootle and Southport Town 
Halls.

38. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

RESOLVED:

That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business 
on the grounds that it would involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraphs 3 and 7A of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE- WEDNESDAY 5TH 
DECEMBER, 2018

5

to the Act.  The Public Interest Test has been applied and favoured 
exclusion of the information from the press and public.

39. REVENUES SERVICE - WRITE OFF OF IRRECOVERABLE 
BUSINESS RATES AND SUNDRY DEBTS WITH BALANCES 
OVER £10,000 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Corporate Resources 
on the Revenue Service’s write-off of irrecoverable Business Rates and 
Sundry Debts with balances over £10,000.

The Revenues Manager presented the report and indicated that since 
publication of the agenda one of the Sundry Debt cases with a value of 
£13,157.49 had been withdrawn due to new information having been 
received. 

Therefore, approval was sought for write-off’s totalling £316,680.76. 
Namely, £227,911.44 in respect of Business Rates and £88,769.32 in 
respect of Sundry Debts. and the total amount presented to the Committee 
for approval for write-off was reduced by £13,157.49 to £316,680.76 (not 
£329.838.25 as stated in the report).

RESOLVED: That 

(1) the withdrawal of one of the Sundry Debts for £13,157.49 listed 
in Appendix 2, be noted; and

(2) the write-off of individual debts totalling £316,680.76 
(comprising Business Rate Debts amounting to £227,911.44 
and Sundry Debts of £88,769.32), be approved.

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Sefton Metropolitan
Borough Council
Council
Audit planning report
Year ended 31 March 2019

March 2019

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 4



2

Private and Confidential March 2019

Dear Audit and Governance Committee Members

Audit planning report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the
Audit and Governance Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2018/19 audit in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to
ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines our
planned audit strategy in response to those risks.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit and Governance Committee and management, and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 20 March 2019 as well as understand whether there are other matters which you
consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

Hassan Rohimun

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

The Members of the Audit and Governance Committee
Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council
Magdalen House
30 Trinity Road
Bootle
L20 3NJ

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 4



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit and Governance Committee and management of Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Audit and Governance Committee and management of Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit and Governance Committee and management of Sefton Metropolitan
Borough Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consentut additional requirements that auditors must comply with,
over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code).

Overview of our
2018/19 audit
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit
materiality04 Scope of our

audit05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit
timeline07 Independence08

Value for
Money Risks03

V
F
M

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 4



4

Overview of our 2018/19 audit
strategy01 01

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 4



5

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus
Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details
Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition

Fraud risk/
Significant risk No change in risk

or focus

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to
improper revenue recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified
by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states that
auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by
the manipulation of expenditure recognition.

Misstatements due to fraud or error Fraud risk
No change in risk or

focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would
otherwise appear to be operating effectively.

Valuation of land and buildings Significant risk No change in risk or
focus

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment Properties
(IP) represent significant balances in the Council’s accounts and are subject to
valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is
required to make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to
calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

Pension liability valuation Inherent risk No change in risk or
focus

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by Wirral
Metropolitan Borough Council.
The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the Code
requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. At 31
March 2018 this totalled £369 million.
Accounting for the scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and
therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their
behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on
the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value
estimates.

Implementation of new accounting

standards
Inherent risk New inherent risk

The 2018/19 CIPFA Code of practice on local authority accounting confirms that
the Local Government will implement International Financial Reporting Standard
(“IFRS”) 9 – Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit and Governance
Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 4



6

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

§ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March
2019 and of the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

§ Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

§ Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
§ Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
§ The quality of systems and processes;
§ Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
§ Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council.Materiality

Planning
materiality

£11m
Performance

materiality

£8.2m Audit
differences

£0.55m

Materiality has been set at £11m, which represents 1.8% of the prior years gross expenditure on provision of services.

Performance materiality has been set at £8.2m, which represents 75% of materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow statement,
collection fund) greater than £0.55m.  Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the
extent that they merit the attention of the Audit and Governance Committee.

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 4



7

Audit risks02 01

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 4



8

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks

What will we do?

We will carry out substantive procedures in response to this risk. The
procedures designed to address the identified risk are set out below.

We will:
• Document our understanding of the processes and controls in place to

mitigate the risks identified;
• Walk through those processes and controls to confirm our

understanding;
• Review and test income and expenditure recognition policies;
• Identify significant accounting estimates for revenue and expenditure

recognition, and test the calculation methodology to identify potential
sources of bias;

• Sample test material revenue and operating expenditure streams, with
a focus on year end assets and liabilities;

• Test the valuation of any provisions recorded in the financial
statements and perform appropriate tests to consider whether all
material provisions have been recognised;

• Sample testing on additions to PPE to ensure they have been correctly
classified as capital and included at the correct value.

• Test revenue cut-off at the period end date; and
• Perform a search for unrecorded trade payables at year end.

Financial statement impact

Misstatements that occur in
relation to the risk of fraud in
revenue and expenditure
recognition could affect the income
and expenditure accounts.

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to improper
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which
states that auditors should also consider the risk
that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition.

Due to the nature and value of income which
comprises of Government Grants, income from
Council Tax and Business Rates, it is our view is
that the risk is not significant in this area, but is
relevant to other income and operating
expenditure.

We consider that the risk impacts on the
following account balances:
• Year-end trade payables and the calculation

of estimates, accruals and provisions which
impact on the completeness and valuation
assertions.

• Year-end trade receivables and accruals
which impacts on the existence and valuation
assertions.

• Year-end provisions that impacts on  the
completeness assertions.

• Capitalisation of revenue expenditure which
impacts on the existence and valuation
assertion for property plant and equipment

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 4



9

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)
What will we do?

We will carry out substantive procedures in response to this risk. The
procedures designed to address the identified risk are set out below:

• Identifying fraud risks during the planning stages;
• Inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in

place to address those risks;
• Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance

of management’s processes over fraud;
• Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed

to address the risk of fraud;
• Determining an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks

of fraud, and;
• Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified

fraud risks, including testing of journal entries and other adjustments
in the preparation of the financial statements.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free
of material misstatements whether caused by
fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of
its ability to manipulate accounting records
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every
audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud or
error

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 4



10

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)
What will we do?

We will carry out substantive procedures in response to this risk. The
procedures designed to address the identified risk are set out below.
We will:
• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuers, including the

adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional
capabilities and the results of their work;

• Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing
their valuation (e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price
per square metre);

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been
valued within a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for
PPE and annually for investment property;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2018/19 to confirm that the
remaining asset base has been subject to impairment review;

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most
recent valuation; and

• Test that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the
financial statements.

As part of our approach we will consider the need to engage internal EY
valuation experts to appraise the approach and assumptions used by the
valuer, particularly in relation to investment or market rent properties,
such as the Council’s investment in the Strand.

What is the risk?

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE) and Investment Properties (IP) represent
significant balances in the Council’s accounts
and are subject to valuation changes,
impairment reviews and depreciation charges.
Management is required to make material
judgemental inputs and apply estimation
techniques to calculate the year-end balances
recorded in the balance sheet, including the use
of work from valuation experts.

Valuation of land and buildings

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 4



11

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Local Government Pension Scheme Valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the
Council to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements
regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme
administered by Wirral Borough Council.
The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the
Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance
sheet. At 31 March 2018 this totalled £369 million.
The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the
Council by the actuary to the County Council.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement
and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the
calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the
assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

We will:
• Liaise with the auditors of Merseyside Pension Fund,  to obtain assurances over the

information supplied to the actuary in relation to Sefton Metropolitan Borough
Council;

• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary including the assumptions they have
used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the
National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any
relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team;

• Consider the variation in the valuation of pension fund assets used in the Council’s
actuarial valuation to the actual year-end asset valuation in order to determine
whether the estimate was materially correct; and

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 4



12

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

IFRS 9 financial instruments

This new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts
from the 2018/19 financial year and will change:

• How financial assets are classified and measured;
• How the impairment of financial assets are calculated; and
• The disclosure requirements for financial assets.

There are transitional arrangements within the standard; and the
2018/19 Cipfa Code of practice on local authority accounting provides
guidance on the application of IFRS 9. However, until the Guidance Notes
are issued and any statutory overrides are confirmed there remains
some uncertainty on the accounting treatment.

We will:
• Assess the authority’s implementation arrangements that should include an impact

assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard, transitional
adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19;

• Consider the classification and valuation of financial instrument assets;
• Review new expected credit loss model impairment calculations for assets; and
• Check additional disclosure requirements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

This new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts
from the 2018/19 financial year.

The key requirements of the standard cover the identification of
performance obligations under customer contracts and the linking of
income to the meeting of those performance obligations.

The 2018/19 Cipfa Code of practice on local authority accounting
provides guidance on the application of IFRS 15 and includes a useful
flow diagram and commentary on the main sources of LG revenue and
how they should be recognised. The impact on local authority accounting
is likely to be limited as large revenue streams like council tax, non
domestic rates and government grants will be outside the scope of IFRS
15. However where that standard is relevant, the recognition of revenue
will change and new disclosure requirements introduced.

We will:
• Assess the authority’s implementation arrangements that should include an impact

assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard, transitional
adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19. This will include Local Authority
Trading Company consolidated into the Authority’s Group Accounts;

• Consider application to the authority’s revenue streams, and where the standard is
relevant test to ensure revenue is recognised when (or as) it satisfies a performance
obligation; and

• Check additional disclosure requirements.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 4



13

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 4



14

Value for Money

Background

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.

For 2018/19 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise
your arrangements to:

§ Take informed decisions;
§ Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
§ Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of
Audit Practice defines as:

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further
work. We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper arrangements at both sector
and organisation-specific level.  In 2018/19 this has included consideration of the steps taken by the Council to
consider the impact of relevant risks on its future service provision, medium-term financing and investment
values.

Our risk assessment has therefore considered both the potential financial impact of the issues we have
identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other
stakeholders. This has resulted in the identification of the significant risks noted on the following page which we
view as relevant to our value for money conclusion.

V
F
M

Proper arrangements for
securing value for money

Informed
decision making

Working with
partners and
third parties

Sustainable
resource

deployment

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 4



15

Value for Money

Value for Money Risks

V
F
M

What is the significant value for money
risk?

What arrangements does the
risk affect? What will we do?

Securing Financial Resilience

In December 2018 the Council projected a
budget shortfall of £8.775m for 2018/19,
and identified non-recurrent mitigating
measures of £5.923m, with a further
£2.890m of in year savings identified. There
remains pressure on the budget particularly
due to Children’s Services expected to exceed
budget by over £4m by the end of the
financial year as a result of increased activity
and placements.
The Council is entering year three of the three
year budget plan, with the budget for 2019-
20 presented to members in February 2019.
The Council do not plan to draw on reserves
to support service delivery going forward, but
the budget pressures and savings
requirements remain challenging across the
sector.
As such, the identification and realisation of
savings in the Medium Term Financial
Strategy remain critical to maintaining the
level of reserves and financial sustainability.

Take informed decisions and
Deploy resources in a
sustainable manner

Our approach will focus on:

• Reviewing the actions the Council undertake to ensure a Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS) is set and is sustainable;

• Considering the financial standing and availability of reserves;
• Considering the outturn performance for 2018/19 compared to projections and

budget; and
• Considering the information available to decision makers in approving budget

and MTFS.
• Considering the Council’s response to the Local Government Association Peer

Review

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 4



16

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 4



17

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2018/19 has been set at £11m. This represents
1.8% of the Council’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services. It will be
reassessed throughout the audit process. We have provided supplemental information
about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£610m
Planning

materiality

£11m

Performance
materiality

£8.2m
Audit

differences

£0.55m

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at £8.2m which
represents 75% of planning materiality. The level of performance
materiality is at the high end of the range based on the low level of errors in
previous years and our assessment of the control environment in place at
the Council.

Component performance materiality range – we determine component
performance materiality as a percentage of Group performance materiality
based on risk and relative size to the Group.

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. The same threshold for
misstatements is used for component reporting. We will report to you all
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet and collection fund that
have an effect on income or that relate to other comprehensive income.
Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit and
Governance Committee, or are important from a qualitative perspective.

Specific materiality – We have set a materiality of £1k for remuneration
disclosures , related party transactions, members’ allowances, audit fees
and exit packages which reflects our understanding that an amount less
than our materiality would influence the economic decisions of users of the
financial statements in relation to these areas.

Key definitions

We request that the Audit and Governance Committee confirm its understanding of,
and agreement to, these materiality and reporting levels.

Component
performance
materiality

£1.1m

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 4



18

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 4



19

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK).

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO [delete if not applicable]

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 4



20

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves:
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and
• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2018/19 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for
improvement, to management and the Audit and Governance Committee.

Internal audit:
We will regularly meet with the Head of Internal Audit, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports,
together with reports from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial
statements.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 4



21

Group scoping

Our audit strategy for performing an audit of an entity with subsidiaries is risk based. We identify components as:

1. Significant components: A component is significant when it is likely to include risks of material misstatement of the group financial statements, either
because of its relative financial size to the group (quantitative criteria), or because of its specific nature or circumstances (qualitative criteria). We
generally assign significant components a full or specific scope given their importance to the financial statements.

2. Not significant components: The number of additional components and extent of procedures performed depended primarily on: evidence from significant
components, the effectiveness of group wide controls and the results of analytical procedures.

Scope of our audit

Scoping the group audit

Other procedures

Scope definitions

Full scope: locations where a full audit is performed to the materiality levels assigned by the Group audit team for purposes of the consolidated audit.
Procedures performed at full scope locations support an interoffice conclusion on the reporting package.  These may not be sufficient to issue a stand-alone
audit opinion on the local statutory financial statements because of the materiality used and any additional procedures required to comply with local laws
and regulations.
Specific scope: locations where the audit is limited to specific accounts or disclosures identified by the Group audit team based on the size and/or risk
profile of those accounts.
Review scope: locations where procedures primarily consist of analytical procedures and inquiries of management. On-site or desk top reviews may be
performed, according to our assessment of risk and the availability of information centrally.
Specified Procedures: locations where the component team performs procedures specified by the Group audit team in order to respond to a risk identified.
Other procedures: For those locations that we do not consider material to the Group financial statements in terms of size relative to the Group and risk, we
perform other procedures to confirm that there is no risk of material misstatement within those locations.

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 4



22

Scope of our audit

Scoping the group audit (continued)

Group team involvement in component audits

We have assessed Sefton New Directions Limited (SNDL) as subject to Specific Scope procedures from a group perspective. Sefton New Directions Limited manages
the day care facilities and services directly to the client portion of audit social care of Sefton on behalf of Sefton Council.  This makes up a significant portion of the
revenue in SNDL.

Auditing standards require us to be involved in the work of component teams. For 2018/19 this will relate to the audit of Sefton New Directions Limited, undertaken
by Hazlewoods LLP.

We have listed our planned involvement below:
• We will provide specific instruction to Hazlewoods LLP setting out our expectations regarding the detailed procedures over income recognition;
• We will set up an initial meeting with the component team to discuss the content of the group instructions;
• We will consider the need to perform a file review of component team’s work where appropriate; and
• We will attend a closing meeting with component team to discuss their audit procedures and findings.

Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council as a stand alone entity are considered a full scope entity for which we complete the audit procedures as set out in the other
sections of this audit plan.

We do not consider dormant or immaterial subsidiaries to be significant components. We therefore do not anticipate any other significant components but will review
this upon receipt of the year end information and should this change we will update our planned approach and provide an update to the Audit Committee.

Key changes in scope from last year

• In 2017-18 the Council prepared group accounts to consolidate the Sefton New Directions Limited (SNDL) subsidiary. The value of the consolidation for the
subsidiary was below the level requiring audit procedures as it was not material in either size or risk.

• However this year, based on our planning procedures, the subsidiary is deemed to be material to the group in terms of risk. We have reached this conclusion to
because at the planning stage we have identified SNDL as having individual account balances above our performance materiality threshold for the group.

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 4



23

Audit team06 01

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 4



24

Audit team

Audit team

Hassan Rohimun
Associate Partner

James Cheung
Audit Senior

Richard Tyler
Senior Manager

EY Actuarial team
Members of EY
GPS Assurance

Team

EY Technical Network

EY Valuations
team

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 4



25

Audit team

Use of specialists
• Our approach to the involvement of specialists, and the use of their work.

When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings EY Valuations Team

Pensions disclosure EY Actuaries

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 4



26

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 4



27

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2018/19.
From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Audit and Governance Committee and we will discuss them with the Audit and
Governance Committee Chair as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Jan Mar JulOct Feb MaySep Dec Apr Jun AugNov
Planning Interim Audit Substantive testingWalkthroughs

Planning

Risk assessment and setting of scopes

Audit Plan

Reporting our
independence, risk

assessment, planned
audit approach and the

scope of our audit

Walkthroughs

Walkthrough of key
systems and processes

Annual Audit Letter

The Annual Audit Letter
will be provided following
completion of our audit

procedures

Audit Results Report

Reporting our conclusions on
key judgements and estimates

and confirmation of our
independence

Year End Audit

Work begins on our year
end audit. This is when we

will complete any
substantive testing not
completed at interim

Interim Audit

Early substantive testing

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 4



28

Independence08 01

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 4



29

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.
We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to
provide non-audit services that has been submitted;
We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period,
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY)
including consideration of all relationships between
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they
are considered to be effective, including any
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;
► Information about the general policies and process

within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.
► Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply

more restrictive independence rules than permitted
under the Ethical Standard [note: additional
wording should be included in the communication
reflecting the client specific situation]

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person,
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;
► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any

non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;
► Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;
► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit

services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy;
► Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms;

and
► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

Introduction

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 4



30

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats,
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services;
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees.
We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.
None of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 and the services have been approved in accordance with
your policy on pre-approval.  The ratio of non audit fees to audits fees is not permitted to exceed 70%.
At the time of writing, the current ratio of non-audit fees to audit fees is approximately 10%.  We have adopted the following safeguards as a result. No additional
safeguards are required.
A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance
with Ethical Standard part 4.
There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent
and the objectivity and independence of your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 4



31

Independence

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in
the financial statements.
There are no self review threats at the date of this report

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.
There are no management threats at the date of this report.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.
There are no other threats at the date of this report.

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 4



32

Independence

EY Transparency Report 2018

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence
and integrity are maintained.
Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2018 and can be found here:
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018

Other communications

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 4



33

Appendices09 01

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 4



34

Appendix A

Fees

Planned fee
2018/19

Final Fee
2017/18

£ £

Fee – Code work 97,711 179,237*
Fee – Code work (housing benefits) NA (see below) 10,390

Total audit 97,711 189,627
Other non-audit services not covered above
(Housing Benefits for 1819, teachers
pensions and other non code work)

15,500 19,500

Total other non-audit services 15,500 19,500
Total fees 113,211 209,127

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published the fee scale for the audit of the 2018/19 accounts of opted-in principal local government and police bodies.

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements
of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

* - We reported in our 2017/18 Annual Audit Letter that additional fees were of
fees of £41,950 for the additional the work that was carried out in response to
identified risks

All fees exclude VAT

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being
unqualified;

► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

► The Council has an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a
variation to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in
advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public
and formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 4



35

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Audit and Governance Committee of acceptance of terms of
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings from
the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit and Governance Committee
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Audit and Governance Committee.

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 4



36

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit and Governance Committee
(continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and

presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by
law or regulation

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Corrected misstatements that are significant
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Fraud • Enquiries of the Audit and Governance Committee to determine whether they have
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Audit results report

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 4



37

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit and Governance Committee
(continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity

and independence

Audit Planning Report and Audit Results
Report

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 4



38

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit and Governance Committee
(continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

Consideration of laws and
regulations

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation
on tipping off

• Enquiry of the Audit and Governance Committee into possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial
statements and that the Audit and Governance Committee  may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit results report

Group audits • An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial information of the
components

• An overview of the nature of the group audit team’s planned involvement in the work to
be performed by the component auditors on the financial information of significant
components

• Instances where the group audit team’s evaluation of the work of a component auditor
gave rise to a concern about the quality of that auditor’s work

• Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group engagement team’s
access to information may have been restricted

• Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management, component management,
employees who have significant roles in group-wide controls or others where the fraud
resulted in a material misstatement of the group financial statements

Audit planning report and Audit results report

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 4



39

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit and Governance Committee
(continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit planning report
Audit results report

Certification work Summary of certification work undertaken Certification report

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 4



40

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group and Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.
• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the

Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial
statements, the Audit and Governance Committee reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the Audit
and Governance Committee and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our understanding and the financial
statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 4



41

Appendix C

Additional audit information (continued)
Purpose and evaluation of materiality

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements.

Materiality determines:
• The locations at which we conduct audit procedures to support the opinion given on the Group financial statements; and
• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Local Government 
Audit Committee 
Briefing
Quarter 4, December 2018

Page 53

Agenda Item 5



Contents 
at a glance

Page 54

Agenda Item 5



1 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

This sector briefing is one of 
the ways that we support you 
and your organisation in an 
environment that is constantly 
changing and evolving.

It covers issues which may have an impact on your 
organisation, the Local Government sector, and 
the audits that we undertake.

The briefings are produced by our public sector 
audit specialists within EY’s national Government 
and Public Sector (GPS) team, using our public 
sector knowledge, and EY’s wider expertise across 
UK and international business. 

The briefings bring together not only technical 
issues relevant to the Local Government sector but 
wider matters of potential interest to you and your 
organisation.

Links to where you can find out more on any of 
the articles featured can be found at the end of 
the briefing. 

We hope that you find the briefing informative 
and should this raise any issues that you would 
like to discuss further, please contact your local 
audit team.

Page 55

Agenda Item 5



2 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

EY Club Item
The latest EY ITEM Club forecast casts a cloudier outlook for the 
UK economy which will have implications for Local Authorities. 
This partly reflects increased uncertainties about Brexit, due 
to the elevated risk of the UK leaving the EU without a deal. It 
also reflects a more challenging global outlook, and continued 
pressures on consumer purchasing power. 

The forecast has slightly downgraded the UK’s economic 
prospects for 2018 and 2019, with GDP growth for 2018 trimmed 
from 1.4% to 1.3% — the slowest rate of expansion since 2009. 
While performance improved in Q2 and Q3, the outlook has since 
become less certain.

One positive note for UK economy is the robust growth in labour 
demand. The unemployment rate remained at 4.0% for the three 
months to July, the lowest level since February 1975. Over the 
same period, the number of vacancies in the UK rose to 833,000, 
highlighting the tightness in the labour market.

As shown in Figure 1, it appears that the spare capacity in the 
labour market created during the crisis has been largely absorbed. 
The Bank of England’s (BoE) recent report about the labour 
market suggests that very limited slack remains — a BoE’s regional 
Agents survey found that 40% of companies are finding it harder 
to recruit and retain staff compared to last year.

Government and 
economic news

UK: Unemployment rate
Figure 1

Labour 
Force 

Survey

Claimant count

Source: EY ITEM Club

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0
2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

%

Forecast

Page 56

Agenda Item 5



3 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

The recruitment challenges facing employers are well known by 
local authorities. An expanding and ageing population will only add 
to the demand pressures, while the supply of workers may be at 
risk due to the impact of Brexit on migration of EEA workers.

Theory suggests that, with unemployment falling and vacancies 
rising, there is little scope for further labour market tightening 
without generating excess wage pressures. However, earnings 
growth has remained subdued in recent periods, and indeed 
relapsed in Q2 2018. Some firms appear keen to limit their costs 
in an uncertain environment, while fragile consumer confidence is 
likely deterring workers from pushing hard for pay rises.

These consumer pressures are manifesting in many areas of 
the economy, and notably in the housing market. Caution over 
engaging in major transactions has seen mortgage approvals at 
approximately 18.1% below their long-term (1993–2018) average. 
Given the earnings squeeze, and the faltering demand for private 
housing, the important role of social housing is likely to persist. 
There were 1.2 million households on a waiting list for social 
housing in England on 1 April 2017, exhibiting the significant 
excess demand. As a result, the announcement by the Government 
to scrap the HRA borrowing cap is welcome, and should go some 
way to meeting demand in the market.

As Brexit beckons, what is the impact that 
local authorities can expect across the UK?
With increasing focus on a potential extension to the Brexit 
transitionary period and the likelihood of a ‘no-deal’ scenario 
failing to diminish, local authorities are beginning to prepare for an 
array of potential impacts from the UK’s departure from the EU. 
We look below at some of the key focus areas for local government 
in assessing the impact of Brexit.

The impact on social care provision:
The social care workforce is particularly susceptible to the impact 
of Brexit. Since the referendum in 2016, there has already been a 
decrease in the number of EU nationals taking jobs in the UK social 
care sector, and this is likely to be squeezed further with the end of 
freedom of movement. This has the potential to lead to labour cost 
inflation, increasing the financial pressure facing local authorities. 

The effects described above will be exacerbated further due to 
challenges in the healthcare system. The NHS is similarly likely to 
suffer to workforce challenges and hence, funding challenges. This 
has the potential to increase the pressure on hospitals to discharge 
early, increasing the burden on the social care system’s capacity. 
The government’s winter crisis cash pledge to the system, is 
unlikely to mitigate such challenges.

The impact on supply chains and logistics:
Some coastal local authorities may face years of road traffic 
issues if border checks are applied following Brexit; authorities in 
the South East likely to be most significantly affected, due to the 
potential of border checks being applied at Dover.

Furthermore, investigations have been made by authorities such 
as Pembrokeshire Council into the ready availability of food and 
medicine in the event of road blockages and closures. Additionally, 
local authorities are struggling to make plans around international 
trade, as they await information on charges and how long waiting 
times at ports are likely to be. This is particularly important in the 
case of livestock and fresh foods being transported.

Changes to customs unions and physical borders may reduce the 
availability and increase the price of key goods required by local 
authorities, including adult social care supplies.

Consumer demand:
Brexit will impact the wider economy, and hence local authorities 
will need to be attuned to the impact on their local economies.

Brexit uncertainty is already beginning to influence the high street 
and local authorities need to consider the prospect of increasing 
voids. Furthermore, local economies that are heavily dependent on 
certain sectors that are vulnerable to the impact of Brexit, such as 
financial services and agriculture, may bear a greater brunt of the 
economic shock that Brexit may cause.

Local authorities may also be impacted more directly, especially 
those authorities that have embarked enthusiastically on 
commercial property investments, thereby creating direct 
exposure to certain sectors, especially the retail sector. In respect 
of this, CIPFA have issued a warning to councils outlining concerns 
over their commercial activity, suggesting that some have been 
guilty of putting public funds at ‘unnecessary or unquantified risk’. 
Councils need to evaluate the proposed impact that they were 
hoping such investments may have on their financial position, 
along with other trading activity, in light of the potential economic 
impact of Brexit.

Impact on property and agricultural land prices.
Predictions that property prices in general are likely to fall 
following Brexit are well documented. Bank of England Governor 
Mark Carney has stated that UK house prices may fall by up to a 
third in the event of a ‘no-deal’ Brexit. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 5



4 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

A reduction in property prices may not be perceived to be a bad 
outcome for all. Furthermore, the government’s HRA borrowing 
cap announcement has the potential to allow councils to increase 
the supply of housing, further supporting a challenged housing 
market. However, such a reduction in property values is likely to 
create a shock that may create financial hardship for many as well 
as impacting the performance of certain sectors.

Budget 2018
On 29 October 2018 the Chancellor delivered the 2018 Autumn 
Budget to Parliament. Among the headline policy announcements, 
such as a new 2% tax on revenue for large digital companies, 
changes to the income tax threshold bands, and increase in 
funding to help departments prepare for Brexit, there were a 
number of announcements that will have a direct impact on local 
authorities. These key announcements include:

 ► Immediate abolition of the Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) cap which restricts local authority borrowing for 
house building.

 ► £675mn Investment in the Future High Street Fund created 
to support local areas prepare long term strategies for their 
high streets and town centres, including investment in physical 
infrastructure. As part of this announcement, small retail 
businesses will see a 33% decrease in business rates and 
public lavatories will receive 100% business rate relief after 
April 2019.

 ► Increased staff costs for local authorities; as the national living 
wage is set to increase by 5% from £7.83 to £8.21 an hour.

 ► Allocation of additional £420mn to local authorities in 2018/19 
to tackle potholes and repair damaged roads.

 ► Local authorities in England will receive a further £650mn in 
social care funding.

CIPFA’s response to the budget was that while the additional short 
term support for the provision of services is welcomed, there are 
greater long term challenges that need to be addressed to embed 
sustainable funding. The July 2018 OBR’s (OBR) projection, upon 
which the budget was based, forecasts that within 50 years the UK 
will not be able to afford anything more than debt interest, health, 

social care and pension payments. CIPFA is clear that there is not 
sufficient funding to sustain expectations of public services at the 
current levels of taxation.

The Local Government Association (LGA) analysis has estimated 
that local services face a funding gap of £7.8bn by 2024/25; the 
funding gap as of 2019/20 is estimated to be £3.9bn. The services 
where there are the greatest funding pressures include social care, 
homelessness and public health. However, the growing demand 
for these services has detrimentally impacted on other services 
that help maintain local communities including libraries, roads and 
welfare support.

An unexpected announcement made by Government during the 
budget was that it will no longer use Private Finance Initiative (PFI) 
schemes, or its successor PF2, because PFI schemes have been 
identified by the Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) as a source 
of significant fiscal risk to the Government. It is unclear if this 
decision by central Government will impact on local authorities in 
future years.

CIPFA Investment Guidance
The media spotlight and public scrutiny surrounding local 
government finances has increased significantly over the past 
year due to increased pressures to deliver services from reduced 
funding. To help authorities better manage their finances CIPFA 
is updating its guidance on Treasury Management. The new key 
principle of guidance will be that ‘Local authorities must not 
borrow more than or in advance of their needs purely in order to 
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed’. 

During 2017/18 the rate at which English councils acquired land 
and buildings increased by 43% to a total of £4bn; whereas total 
borrowing increased from £4bn to £10bn (127 %). As such there 
is a growing concern that too many local authorities are investing 
heavily in commercial property at a rate that is disproportionate 
to their available resources. This exposes public funds to 
unquantified risks. This stands against the primary objective of 
a local authority’s treasury management strategy to safeguard 
public money.

Page 58

Agenda Item 5



5 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Accounting, 
auditing and 
governance

IFRS 9: Statutory Override update
The 2018/19 financial year will be the first year where the 
accounting standard IFRS 9 will be implemented by local 
government. IFRS 9 impacts on an authority’s financial assets: 
the investments it holds; the amounts it has lent to others; and 
other monetary based assets it may have. It changes how these 
financial assets are classified and how movements in their value 
are accounted for. It also changes how these assets are impaired; 
based on the risk that the assets may not be recovered in full, 
or at all. 

Following a consultation by the Ministry for Housing Communities 
and Local Government on the impact of IFRS 9, an initial statutory 
override has been granted for five years, despite 90% stakeholders 
opposing a time-limited period. This statutory override means that 
councils will still be required to account for fair value movements 
in financial instruments (in accordance with proper practices as 
set out in the code on local authority accounting); however these 
movements will not be charged to the revenue account. 

The result of which is that statutory override will remove the 
potential burden that council tax payers or local authorities may 
have faced if fair value movements were unfavourable. 

Public Sector Pension Scheme Valuation
The Government undertakes a valuation of public service pension 
schemes every four years, this year sees the first full assessment 
of these since the introduction of reformed schemes in 2015. 

The Chief Secretary to the Treasury has stated that early 
indications would suggest that employers’ contribution will need 
to increase as a result of a proposed decrease in the discount 
rate. The discount rate, known as the SCAPE rate, is based on 
the OBR projection of the short-term pay growth in terms of 
GDP. OBR has reduced this rate from 3.0% to 2.8% in 2016 and 
a further reduction has been proposed as of April 2019 to 2.4%. 
This discount rate is used to calculate the current costs of future 
payments and as the discount rate decreases, the pension liability 
increases. Given that employee rates are effectively fixed under 
scheme regulations, employer contributions will need to increase 
to meet the increased liability. Further details are to be announced 
later in the year in addition to further discussion taken forward as 
part of the spending review. 

Local Public Audit — Expectations gap
For the public to gain trust and confidence in public spending, 
a framework of accountability, transparency, governance and 
ethics needs to be built. The ultimate responsibility lies with the 
government departments that delegate spending to local public 
bodies. These public bodies must then be able to demonstrate that 
the money has been spent efficiently and effectively. 

One way the public can gain trust in public spending, is by relying 
on the external audit process to provide assurance on the financial 
statements and report by exception on the arrangements the 

Page 59

Agenda Item 5



6 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

public body has in place to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. However, the role of audit, is often misunderstood 
creating the audit expectation gap which is the difference between 
what an auditor actually does, as required by legislation and 
auditing standards, and what stakeholders think that the auditors’ 
obligations might be and what they might do. 

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 
(ICAEW) produced a report to raise awareness on the expectation 
gap and suggest some possible solutions. The report also 
discusses how issues faced by local public bodies such as financial 
difficulties, increasing demand from an ageing population, 
complex structures and weaknesses of accountability impacts the 
audit process and widens the expectation gap.

Some common concerns were noted in the report by 
interviews with Chief Financial Officers in different sectors and 
regulatory bodies:

1. Local authorities and health bodies are facing a difficult time 
with increasing pressure to deliver more services, become 
innovative and commercial with reduced financial support. This 
pressure could bring in concerns about behaviours that may 
not be in the best long-term interests of the public.

2. Reports produced by auditors are not being fully utilised by 
management and audit committees to build on successes and 
make improvements within the body where recommendations 
have been made.

3. Auditors are concerned that qualifications and issues identified 
in their opinions are not taken seriously enough by those 
charged with governance.

4. The reduction in audit fees has led to a perception by 
local bodies that they are receiving reduced scope of work 
compared to the previous regime (Audit Commission). 
The concerns are not in relation to compliance with auditing 
standards, but rather the lack of value added activities that 
was previously provided. 

5. Chief Financial Officers expect more challenge and review 
of their forward-looking plans which underpin the financial 
resilience of the authority.

6. Other stakeholders are not getting sufficient assurance over 
the effectiveness of service delivery and performance in 
auditors’ work.

7. Increased regulation and scrutiny against the reduced number 
of auditor firms in the local government market.

8. Local public auditors’ power being limited by the removal of 
indemnity insurance and increased difficulty to recover costs.

The ICAEW has offered a number of potential solutions in the 
report to close this expectation gap including:

1. Chief Financial Officers could consider involving external 
support to assist them in their financial resilience work, such as 
challenging their budget assumptions and other key decision 
making factors, instead of relying on external auditors to 
provide other value added activities, as these may have some 
independence restrictions.

2. More broadly, consideration could be given to widen 
the scope of the audit to include for example a greater 
future-looking focus.

Page 60

Agenda Item 5



7 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Regulation 
news

PSAA: Report on results of 2017/18 audits
PSAA (Public Sector Accounts Appointments) has reported 
its annual summary on the timeliness and quality of financial 
reporting in relation to audits for the 2017/18 financial year. 
A total of 431 (87 %) local government and fire authorities 
published their audited accounts by the deadline of 3 July 2018. 
2017/18 was the first year that the accounts and audit deadline 
was brought forward from the 30 September to the 31 July. 
PSAA’s Chief Officer stated that whilst these results were 
encouraging and reflect considerable efforts of both local 
government finance staff and auditors, there is still more work to 
be done in order for 100% of authorities to meet the new deadline. 

The number of qualified ‘Value for Money’ conclusions is 
currently at 7% (compared to 8% for 2016/17); however there 
30 conclusions still to be issued for 2017/18. The most common 
reasons for issuing a qualified Value for Money conclusion were 
corporate governance issues, financial stability concerns and 
contract management issues. 

Page 61

Agenda Item 5



8 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Other

EY 2018 Transparency Report
Our profession has come under scrutiny from policymakers and 
other stakeholders over the year, and the need for transparency 
has never been greater. Increasingly, the public is expecting more 
and more from the audit than its current remit requires. This 
difference is known as the ‘audit expectation gap’ which has been 
discussed above. We believe the time is right for all concerned in 
the corporate control ecosystem to seize the moment and consider 
deeply what society expects from businesses and the assurance it 
needs over their activity.

It’s in our interests and the public’s for EY UK to be as open and 
transparent as possible. The Transparency Report goes some 
way towards helping us achieve this, while also providing an 
opportunity to share a more balanced perspective on what we 

do and how we perform as a business. For example, it refers to 
our role in building trust and confidence in the capital markets 
and wider economies, by maintaining and developing positive 
relationships with our stakeholders. It explains what we do to make 
a difference to people’s lives by helping to improve social mobility 
in the UK. It also shows how our people are supported in their role 
as auditors by making reference to our tools, technologies and 
training programmes. Details on internal and external surveys and 
inspections are included as well, to show how we are performing 
against our own expectations and — most importantly — those of 
our regulators.

We refer to this report in our audit planning reports to audit 
committees, and we summarise the key headlines below.

Page 62

Agenda Item 5



9 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

The result of the FRC’s most recent review of out audits showed 
that 82% of our FTSE 350 audits were graded as requiring no 
more than limited improvement, against a 90% target. Overall 
67% of all EY UK’s audits inspected were graded as requiring no 
more than limited improvements. We are proud of the progress 
we have made in the UK since the launch of UK Sustainable Audit 
Quality (SAQ) programme a few years ago. But there is still more 
work to be done to consider audit quality from the viewpoint 
of key stakeholders: investors, audit committees, companies, 
regulators and our people. The work we have done to model the 
behaviours of our highest performing teams, using cognitive 
psychologists, will continue. In the year ahead we will prioritise 
the extent and consistency of the model’s adoption. We aim to 
transform the behaviours that feature in the model into business-
as-usual activity across all of our audit teams.

As organisations become more complex, so do audits, making 
access to different skills and capabilities more important than 
ever. The traditional audit has already been transformed by the 
use of technology and digital platforms, and the pace of change 
will only accelerate. These new capabilities enable us to search, 
sift and sort through large quantities of data, allowing us to 
identify potential areas of risk and understand an organisation’s 
performance at a more granular level. The audit process is 
becoming more forward looking, with a focus on anticipating 
future risks. Our new capabilities are also providing insights 
into areas that were once thought to be impossible to measure, 
such as culture.

This unprecedented scrutiny and demand for change, can be seen 
as an incredible opportunity to focus our efforts on addressing the 
root cause, deliver sustainable high quality audit and gain the trust 
and confidence in the capital markets society needs and demands. 

2018 Highlights
Audit quality

Page 63

Agenda Item 5



10 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Key questions for the Audit Committee
2018 Budget
How has the 2018 Budget impacted the local authority’s 
financial plans for the current year and the year ahead?

CIPFA Investment Guidance
How much is your authority dependent on commercial 
investment income to fund services? 

What governance structures are in place to ensure that the 
authority’s borrowing is proportionate to its need and level 
of resources?

IFRS 9: Statutory Override
Have you considered the impact of the new IFRS 9 accounting 
standard? How will you plan for the possibility that the 
statutory override will end in five years’ time? 

Public Sector Pension Scheme Valuation
Have you taken into account the impact of the most recent 
review of the public sector pension scheme on your budgets 
and medium term financial position?

Local Public Audit — Expectations gap
How far do you recognise the issues of the ICAEW report 
on the expectations gap in local public audit? What is your 
perspective on the value that external audit provides?

PSAA: Report on results of 2017/18 audits
What lessons have you learnt from the earlier accounts 
and audit deadlines in 2017/18? Are you confident that 
these lessons will be applied for the 2018/19 accounts and 
audit process?

Find out more

EY Club Item
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/
financial-markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-
projections

2018 Budget
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/budget-2018-24-things-
you-need-to-know

https://www.local.gov.uk/about/news/lga-responds-budget-2018 

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-
releases/cipfa-responds-to-budget-2018

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/
Moving%20the%20conversation%20on%20-%20LGA%20
Autumn%20Budget%20Submission%202018.pdf

CIPFA Investment Guidance
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/10/cipfa-investment-
guidance-will-help-councils-steer-through-challenges

Local Public Audit — Expectations gap
https://www.icaew.com/about-icaew/regulation-and-the-
public-interest/policy/public-sector-finances/local-public-audit-
expectations-gap

https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/
policy/local-public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en

IFRS 9: Statutory Override
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/11/ifrs-9-override-
last-five-years

Public Sector Pension Scheme Valuation
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/
system/uploads/attachment_data/file/738917/Technical_
Bulletin_Public_Service_Pension_Schemes_Valuations.pdf

https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/
written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/
Commons/2018-09-06/HCWS945/

PSAA: Report on results of 2017/18 audits
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-
auditors-work/

EY Transparency Report 2018
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-
report-2018

https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2018-
transparency-report/$File/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report.pdf

Page 64

Agenda Item 5

https://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/financial-markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-projections
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/financial-markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-projections
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/financial-markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-projections
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/budget-2018-24-things-you-need-to-know
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/budget-2018-24-things-you-need-to-know
https://www.local.gov.uk/about/news/lga-responds-budget-2018
https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-responds-to-budget-2018
https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-responds-to-budget-2018
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Moving%20the%20conversation%20on%20-%20LGA%20Autumn%20Budget%20Submission%202018.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Moving%20the%20conversation%20on%20-%20LGA%20Autumn%20Budget%20Submission%202018.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Moving%20the%20conversation%20on%20-%20LGA%20Autumn%20Budget%20Submission%202018.pdf
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/10/cipfa-investment-guidance-will-help-councils-steer-through-challenges
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/10/cipfa-investment-guidance-will-help-councils-steer-through-challenges
https://www.icaew.com/about-icaew/regulation-and-the-public-interest/policy/public-sector-finances/local-public-audit-expectations-gap
https://www.icaew.com/about-icaew/regulation-and-the-public-interest/policy/public-sector-finances/local-public-audit-expectations-gap
https://www.icaew.com/about-icaew/regulation-and-the-public-interest/policy/public-sector-finances/local-public-audit-expectations-gap
https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/policy/local-public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en
https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/policy/local-public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/11/ifrs-9-override-last-five-years
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/11/ifrs-9-override-last-five-years
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/738917/Technical_Bulletin_Public_Service_Pension_Schemes_Valuations.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/738917/Technical_Bulletin_Public_Service_Pension_Schemes_Valuations.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/738917/Technical_Bulletin_Public_Service_Pension_Schemes_Valuations.pdf
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2018-09-06/HCWS945/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2018-09-06/HCWS945/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2018-09-06/HCWS945/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018
https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report/$File/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report.pdf
https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report/$File/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report.pdf


EY  |  Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory services. 
The insights and quality services we deliver help build trust and confidence 
in the capital markets and in economies the world over. We develop 
outstanding leaders who team to deliver on our promises to all of our 
stakeholders. In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better 
working world for our people, for our clients and for our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or more, of 
the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each of which is a 
separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited 
by guarantee, does not provide services to clients. For more information 
about our organization, please visit ey.com.

Ernst & Young LLP
The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales 
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

© 2018 Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK. 
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

EY-000083110.indd (UK) 12/18. Artwork by Creative Services Group London.

In line with EY’s commitment to minimise its impact on the environment, this document 
has been printed on paper with a high recycled content.

Information in this publication is intended to provide only a general outline of the subjects covered. 
It should neither be regarded as comprehensive nor sufficient for making decisions, nor should it 
be used in place of professional advice. Ernst & Young LLP accepts no responsibility for any loss 
arising from any action taken or not taken by anyone using this material.

ey.com/uk

Page 65

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Audit and 
Governance 
Committee

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 20 
March 2019

Subject: Local Government Ethical Standards

Report of: Head of Corporate 
Resources

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Cabinet Member - Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate 
Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

N Included in 
Forward Plan:

 No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

N

Summary:

This report informs Members of the outcome of the Committee on Standards in Public 
Life review of Local Government Ethical Standards

Recommendation(s):

(1) To note the report and the contents of the review.
(2) To endorse the actions contained within paragraph 3 in relation to Best Practice 

recommendations

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To keep Members abreast of developments with the ethical standards regime and seek 
approval for immediate actions to be taken in light of the review.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

None

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

None

(B) Capital Costs

None

Page 67

Agenda Item 6



Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets): There are no resource 
implications directing arising from the recommendations within the report.

Legal Implications: Localism Act 2011. 

Equality Implications: There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: NA

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: NA

Commission, broker and provide core services: NA

Place – leadership and influencer: High standards of conduct in local government are 
needed to protect the integrity of decision-making, maintain public confidence, and 
safeguard local democracy. 

Drivers of change and reform: NA

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: NA

Greater income for social investment:  NA

Cleaner Greener: NA

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD.5593/2019) and the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer (LD4717/2019) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated 
into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

None

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: David McCullough
Telephone Number: Tel: 0151 934 2008
Email Address: david.mccullough@sefton.gov.uk

Page 68

Agenda Item 6



Appendices:

There are no appendices to this report

Background Papers:

Report – Local Government Ethical Standards; A Review by the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-
ethical-standards-report 

1. Introduction

1.1 On 25 May 2010, the coalition government announced its intention to abolish the 
Standards Board regime set out in Part 3 of the Local Government Act 2000. The 
government accepted that it was important to have safeguards in place to prevent 
the abuse of power and misuse of public money, given that those who elected 
members to office had the right to expect the highest standards of behaviour. 
However, it considered that the standards regime under the LGA 2000, under 
which all local authorities by law had to adopt a national code of conduct and a 
standards committee to oversee the behaviour of members and receive 
complaints, regulated by Standards for England, was ineffective, bureaucratic and 
encouraged petty complaints or harmful accusations. It therefore proposed that, 
through the Localism Act 2011, local authorities would draw up their own local 
codes of conduct and it would become a criminal offence for members to 
deliberately withhold or misrepresent a financial interest.

1.2 However, concerns were raised by the Committee on Standards in Public Life 
(CSPL) in various reports, following the implementation of the Localism Act 2011, 
as to whether the sanctions for breach of standards were adequate and that it 
would therefore be monitoring the implementation of the new local government 
standards regime.

1.3 The CSPL undertook a review with the following terms of reference:

1. Examine the structures, processes and practices in local government in 
England for: 

a. Maintaining codes of conduct for local councillors 

b. Investigating alleged breaches fairly and with due process 

c. Enforcing codes and imposing sanctions for misconduct 

d. Declaring interests and managing conflicts of interest 

e. Whistleblowing 

Page 69

Agenda Item 6

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report


  2. Assess whether the existing structures, processes and practices are    
conducive to high standards of conduct in local government 

3. Make any recommendations for how they can be improved 

4. Note any evidence of intimidation of councillors, and make recommendations 
for any measures that could be put in place to prevent and address such 
intimidation

1.4 The review covered all local authorities in England, of which there are 353 
principal authorities, with 18,111 councillors in 2013, and an estimated 10,000 
parish councils in England, with around 80,000 parish councillors. They did not 
take evidence relating to Combined Authorities, metro mayors, or the Mayor of 
London. 

2. CSPL Review 

2.1 The review report runs to over 100 pages and the list of recommendations is as 
follows:

Number Recommendation Responsible body 

1 The Local Government 
Association should create an 
updated model code of 
conduct, in consultation with 
representative bodies of 
councillors and officers of all 
tiers of local government. 

Local Government 
Association 

2 The government should 
ensure that candidates 
standing for or accepting 
public offices are not 
required publicly to disclose 
their home address. The 
Relevant Authorities 
(Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012 
should be amended to clarify 
that a councillor does not 
need to register their home 
address on an authority’s 
register of interests. 

Government 

3 Councillors should be 
presumed to be acting in an 
official capacity in their public 
conduct, including 
statements on publicly-
accessible social media. 
Section 27(2) of the Localism 

Government 

Page 70

Agenda Item 6



Act 2011 should be 
amended to permit local 
authorities to presume so 
when deciding upon code of 
conduct breaches. 

4 Section 27(2) of the Localism 
Act 2011 should be 
amended to state that a local 
authority’s code of conduct 
applies to a member when 
they claim to act, or give the 
impression they are acting, 
in their capacity as a 
member or as a 
representative of the local 
authority. 

Government 

5 The Relevant Authorities 
(Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012 
should be amended to 
include: unpaid directorships; 
trusteeships; management 
roles in a charity or a body of 
a public nature; and 
membership of any 
organisations that seek to 
influence opinion or public 
policy. 

Government 

6 Local authorities should be 
required to establish a 
register of gifts and 
hospitality, with councillors 
required to record any gifts 
and hospitality received over 
a value of £50, or totalling 
£100 over a year from a 
single source. This 
requirement should be 
included in an updated 
model code of conduct. 

Government

Page 71

Agenda Item 6



7 Section 31 of the Localism 
Act 2011 should be 
repealed, and replaced with 
a requirement that councils 
include in their code of 
conduct that a councillor 
must not participate in a 
discussion or vote in a 
matter to be considered at a 
meeting if they have any 
interest, whether registered 
or not, “if a member of the 
public, with knowledge of the 
relevant facts, would 
reasonably regard the 
interest as so significant that 
it is likely to prejudice your 
consideration or decision-
making in relation to that 
matter”. 

Government 

8 The Localism Act 2011 
should be amended to 
require that Independent 
Persons are appointed for 
a fixed term of two years, 
renewable once. 

Government 

9 The Local Government 
Transparency Code should 
be updated to provide that 
the view of the 
Independent Person in 
relation to a decision on 
which they are consulted 
should be formally 
recorded in any decision 
notice or minutes. 

Government 

10 A local authority should 
only be able to suspend a 
councillor where the 
authority’s Independent 
Person agrees both with 
the finding of a breach and 
that suspending the 
councillor would be a 
proportionate sanction. 

Government 

11 Local authorities should 
provide legal indemnity to 
Independent Persons if 
their views or advice are 
disclosed. The government 

Government / all local 
authorities 

Page 72

Agenda Item 6



should require this through 
secondary legislation if 
needed. 

12 Local authorities should be 
given the discretionary 
power to establish a 
decision-making standards 
committee with voting 
independent members and 
voting members from 
dependent parishes, to 
decide on allegations and 
impose sanctions. 

Government 

13 Councillors should be 
given the right to appeal to 
the Local Government 
Ombudsman if their local 
authority imposes a period 
of suspension for 
breaching the code of 
conduct. 

Government

14 The Local Government 
Ombudsman should be 
given the power to 
investigate and decide 
upon an allegation of a 
code of conduct breach by 
a councillor, and the 
appropriate sanction, on 
appeal by a councillor who 
has had a suspension 
imposed. The 
Ombudsman’s decision 
should be binding on the 
local authority. 

Government 

15 The Local Government 
Transparency Code 
should be updated to 
require councils to publish 
annually: the number of 
code of conduct 
complaints they receive; 
what the complaints 
broadly relate to (e.g. 
bullying; conflict of 
interest); the outcome of 
those complaints, 
including if they are 

Government 

Page 73

Agenda Item 6



rejected as trivial or 
vexatious; and any 
sanctions applied. 

16 Local authorities should 
be given the power to 
suspend councillors, 
without allowances, for up 
to six months. 

Government 

17 The government should 
clarify if councils may 
lawfully bar councillors 
from council premises or 
withdraw facilities as 
sanctions. These powers 
should be put beyond 
doubt in legislation if 
necessary. 

Government 

18 The criminal offences in 
the Localism Act 2011 
relating to Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests should 
be abolished. 

Government 

19 Parish council clerks 
should hold an 
appropriate qualification, 
such as those provided by 
the Society of Local 
Council Clerks. 

Parish councils 

20 Section 27(3) of the 
Localism Act 2011 should 
be amended to state that 
parish councils must 
adopt the code of conduct 
of their principal authority, 
with the necessary 
amendments, or the new 
model code. 

Government 

21 Section 28(11) of the 
Localism Act 2011 should 
be amended to state that 
any sanction imposed on 
a parish councillor 
following the finding of a 
breach is to be 
determined by the 
relevant principal 

Government 

Page 74

Agenda Item 6



authority. 

22 The Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) 
(England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2015 should 
be amended to provide 
that disciplinary 
protections for statutory 
officers extend to all 
disciplinary action, not just 
dismissal. 

Government

23 The Local Government 
Transparency Code should 
be updated to provide that 
local authorities must 
ensure that their 
whistleblowing policy 
specifies a named contact 
for the external auditor 
alongside their contact 
details, which should be 
available on the authority’s 
website. 

Government 

24 Councillors should be listed 
as ‘prescribed persons’ for 
the purposes of the Public 
Interest Disclosure Act 
1998. 

Government 

25 Councillors should be 
required to attend formal 
induction training by their 
political groups. National 
parties should add such a 
requirement to their model 
group rules. 

Political groups 

National political parties 

26 Local Government 
Association corporate peer 
reviews should also include 
consideration of a local 
authority’s processes for 
maintaining ethical 
standards. 

Local Government 
Association

2.2 Members will see that the vast majority of the recommendations identify the 
government as the responsible body for implementing the recommendation and a 
further report will be submitted to committee when we receive the government’s 
response. Members will also see that it is recommended that the Local 
Government Association should create an updated model code of conduct and 

Page 75

Agenda Item 6



should such a model code be produced, it will be presented to members for 
consideration in due course.

3. Best Practice

3.1 In addition to the above recommendations the Review published a list of best 
practice recommendations which they expect should be implemented and they 
intend to review the implementation of their best practice in 2020.

Best practice 1: Local authorities should include prohibitions on bullying and 
harassment in codes of conduct. These should include a definition of bullying and 
harassment, supplemented with a list of examples of the sort of behaviour covered by 
such a definition. 

o Comment: Our code prohibits bullying and harassment but no definition or 
examples are contained within the code.

o Recommendation: No concerns that the Code is not understood so no further 
action at this juncture.

Best practice 2: Councils should include provisions in their code of conduct requiring 
councillors to comply with any formal standards investigation, and prohibiting trivial or 
malicious allegations by councillors. 

o Comment: Our code does not include specific provisions but reasonably implied 
from other obligations.

o Recommendation: No action at this juncture.

Best practice 3: Principal authorities should review their code of conduct each year and 
regularly seek, where possible, the views of the public, community organisations and 
neighbouring authorities. 

o Comment: Our code is regularly reviewed which includes reviewing the codes of 
conduct in operation in neighbouring local authorities and national developments. 
Annual training provided.

o Recommendation: No action at this juncture.

Best practice 4: An authority’s code should be readily accessible to both councillors and 
the public, in a prominent position on a council’s website and available in council 
premises. 

o Comment: We comply with this best practice.

Page 76

Agenda Item 6



o Recommendation: No further action at this juncture.

Best practice 5: Local authorities should update their gifts and hospitality register at 
least once per quarter, and publish it in an accessible format, such as CSV. 

o Comment: The register is regularly updated and is published on the Council’s 
website under the Members Register of Interests.

o Recommendation: No further action at this juncture.

Best practice 6: Councils should publish a clear and straightforward public interest test 
against which allegations are filtered. 

o Comment: Council has approved a ‘local assessment criteria test’ which the 
Monitoring Officer utilises when assessing initial complaints. The test is not 
published.

o Recommendation: Publish the ‘local assessment criteria test’ on the Council’s 
website.

Best practice 7: Local authorities should have access to at least two Independent 
Persons. 

o Comment: We have two Independent Persons.

o Recommendation: No further action at this juncture.

Best practice 8: An Independent Person should be consulted as to whether to 
undertake a formal investigation on an allegation, and should be given the option to 
review and comment on allegations which the responsible officer is minded to dismiss as 
being without merit, vexatious, or trivial.

o Comment: Independent Persons are not consulted at this early stage in the 
process but the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee is consulted if the 
Monitoring officer is minded not to deal with a complaint on the basis that it is 
without merit, vexatious or trivial.

o Recommendation: No further action at this juncture.

Best practice 9: Where a local authority makes a decision on an allegation of 
misconduct following a formal investigation, a decision notice should be published as 
soon as possible on its website, including a brief statement of facts, the provisions of the 
code engaged by the allegations, the view of the Independent Person, the reasoning of 
the decision-maker, and any sanction applied. 

Page 77

Agenda Item 6



o Comment: In accordance with our procedures for dealing with complaints at the 
conclusion of a hearing the sub-committee will re-convene in public and the Chair 
will announce:

(1) The Sub-Committee decision as to whether or not the Subject Member has failed 
to comply with the Code of Conduct and the principal reasons for the decision:

(2) The sanctions (if any) to be applied;

(3) The recommendations (if any) to be made to the Council or Parish Council or 
Monitoring Officer;

(4) That there is no right of appeal against the Sub-Committee’s decision and / or 
recommendations. 

          The minutes of the meeting are published on the website.

o Recommendation: No further action at this juncture.

Best practice 10: A local authority should have straightforward and accessible guidance 
on its website on how to make a complaint under the code of conduct, the process for 
handling complaints, and estimated timescales for investigations and outcomes.

o Comment: We comply with this best practice.

o Recommendation: No further action at this juncture.
 

Best practice 11: Formal standards complaints about the conduct of a parish councillor 
towards a clerk should be made by the chair or by the parish council as a whole, rather 
than the clerk in all but exceptional circumstances.

o Comment: This does not form part of our code of conduct which has been 
adopted by the majority of the parish councils in the borough.

o Recommendation: Inform the parish councils of this recommendation and leave it 
to their discretion whether they wish to introduce this best practice 
recommendation. 

Best practice 12: Monitoring Officers’ roles should include providing advice, support and 
management of investigations and adjudications on alleged breaches to parish councils 
within the remit of the principal authority. They should be provided with adequate 
training, corporate support and resources to undertake this work. 

o Comment: We comply with this best practice.

o Recommendation: No further action at this juncture.

Page 78

Agenda Item 6



Best practice 13: A local authority should have procedures in place to address any 
conflicts of interest when undertaking a standards investigation. Possible steps should 
include asking the Monitoring Officer from a different authority to undertake the 
investigation. 

o Comment: Whilst this is not specifically written into our code it is not prohibited 
and the Monitoring Officer has the ability to seek assistance from third parties.

o Recommendation: No further action at this juncture.

Best practice 14: Councils should report on separate bodies they have set up or which 
they own as part of their annual governance statement, and give a full picture of their 
relationship with those bodies. Separate bodies created by local authorities should abide 
by the Nolan principle of openness, and publish their board agendas and minutes and 
annual reports in an accessible place. 

o Comment: Our annual governance statement does include reference to separate 
bodies wholly owned by the Council. The Council has 2 wholly owned companies, 
namely Sefton New Directions and Sandway Homes Limited. It is considered that 
the minutes of the company board meetings contain commercially sensitive 
information which should not be subject to routine publication. The two companies 
are however, subject to the provision of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

o Recommendation: No further action at this juncture.

Best practice 15: Senior officers should meet regularly with political group leaders or 
group whips to discuss standards issues.

o Comment: The Monitoring Officer and the Head of Democratic Services have 
regular meetings with the group whips, normally in the days leading to a Full 
Council meeting. The Chief Executive and senior officers regularly meet with the 
political group leaders.

o Recommendation: No further action at this juncture.

4 Conclusion

4.1 The CSPL believe their recommendations represent a package of reforms to 
strengthen and clarify the existing framework for local government standards. 
Whilst many of the recommendations would require primary legislation – whose 
implementation would be subject to Parliamentary timetabling – they would expect 
that those recommendations only requiring secondary legislation or amendments 
to the Local Government Transparency Code could be implemented by 
government relatively quickly. The best practice they have identified is, in most 
cases, already operating in a number of local authorities. Taken as a whole, this 
best practice represents a benchmark that any local authority in England can and 
should implement in their own organisation.

Page 79

Agenda Item 6



4.2 Ultimately, they believe that, responsibility for ethical standards rests, and should 
remain, with local authorities. Senior councillors and officers must show 
leadership in order to build and maintain an ethical culture in their own authority.

Page 80

Agenda Item 6



Report to: Audit and 
Governance 
Committee

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 20 
March 2019

Subject: Revenue and Capital Budget Update - Treasury Management 
Position to January 2019

Report of: Head of Corporate 
Resources

Wards Affected: All Wards

Portfolio: Cabinet Member - Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate 
Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

Yes Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

This report provides Members with a review of the Treasury Management activities 
undertaken to 31st January 2019. This document is the third report of the ongoing 
quarterly monitoring provided to Audit & Governance Committee, whose role it is to carry 
out scrutiny of treasury management policies and practices. 

Recommendation(s):

Members are requested to note the Treasury Management update to 31st January 2019, 
to review the effects of decisions taken in pursuit of the Treasury Management Strategy 
and to consider the implications of changes resulting from regulatory, economic and 
market factors affecting the Council’s treasury management activities. 

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To ensure that Members are fully appraised of the treasury activity undertaken to 31st 
January 2019 and to meet the reporting requirements set out in Sefton’s Treasury 
Management Practices and those recommended by the CIPFA code. 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

N/A

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs
The financial position on the external investment budget to the end of January 
indicates a surplus of £0.046m compared to the proportion of the budget to date. If 
current market conditions prevail a surplus of around £0.057m will be 
experienced. 

Page 81

Agenda Item 7



(B) Capital Costs
None.

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
Surplus on Debt Repayment/Net Interest Budget.

Legal Implications:
The Council has a statutory duty to review its Treasury Management activities from time 
to time during the financial year.
Equality Implications:

None.

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: n/a

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: n/a

Commission, broker and provide core services: n/a

Place – leadership and influencer: Support strategic planning and promote innovative, 
affordable and sustainable capital investment projects through application of the CIPFA 
Prudential Code.

Drivers of change and reform: The Treasury Management function ensures that cash 
flow is adequately planned and cash is available when needed by the Council for 
improvements to the borough through its service provision and the Capital Programme.

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:  Pursuit of optimum performance on 
investments activities and minimising the cost of borrowing and the effective 
management of the associated risk continues to contribute to a balanced budget for the 
Council.

Greater income for social investment: n/a

Cleaner Greener: n/a

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD 5584/19) and the Chief Legal & Democratic 
Officer (LD4708/19) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated 
into the report.

(B) External Consultations None.

Page 82

Agenda Item 7



Contact Officer: Graham Hussey
Telephone Number: 0151 934 4100
Email Address: Graham.Hussey@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

There are no appendices to this report

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

1. Background to the Report

1.1. As recommended under CIPFA’s revised 2017 Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management in Public Services, the Council’s Treasury Management Policy and 
Strategy document for 2018/19 (approved by Council on 1st March 2018) 
included a requirement for regular updates to be provided on the investment 
activity of the Authority. This report is the third of such reports for the year and 
presents relevant Treasury Management information for the period ending 31st 
January 2019.

1.2. The report includes information on the investments held / entered into during the 
period and the interest rates obtained (with a comparison of performance against 
a standard benchmark figure). In addition, the report highlights whether there has 
been any variance from the Treasury Management Policy Strategy and the 
Council’s approved Prudential Indicators (the operational boundaries within 
which the Council aims to work).

2. Investment Portfolio

2.1. Investments held at the 31/01/2019 comprise the following:

Institution Deposit Rate Maturity Rating
£m %

Money Market Funds:
Aviva 3.600 0.78 n/a AAA
BNP Paribas 3.600 0.82 n/a AAA
Goldman Sachs 1.000 0.73 n/a AAA
Invesco 3.600 0.75 n/a AAA
Federated Investors 3.600 0.78 n/a AAA
Insight 3.600 0.78 n/a AAA

Total 19.000
Call Accounts:
Santander 3.000 1.00 95 day notice A+
GSIB 3.000 0.82 185 day notice A

Total 6.000
Page 83

Agenda Item 7



Institution Deposit Rate Maturity Rating
£m %

Fixed Term Deposits:
Lloyds 3.000 0.90 20/02/2019 A+
DBS 3.000 0.90 04/02/2019 AA-

Total 6.000
Property Fund:
CCLA 5.000 4.21 n/a n/a

Total 5.000

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 36.000

2.2. All of the investments made since April 2018 have been with organisations on 
the current counterparty list. The maximum level of investment permitted in the 
Treasury Management Strategy in any one institution, or banking group, is 
currently £25m. Whilst the maximum should be retained, in case economic 
conditions change, a day to day operational maximum of 10% of the total 
portfolio is currently being imposed. This will spread the risk of investments for 
the Council, but will have a small detrimental impact on the returns the Council 
will receive in the future. The Council has remained within that boundary during 
the year. At present, it is not expected that there will be any need to review this 
limit.

2.3. The Council will only invest in institutions that hold a minimum Fitch rating of A- 
for banking institutions, or AAA for money market funds. The ratings applied to 
investment grade institutions, and the much riskier speculative grade institutions, 
as defined by Fitch, have been placed into a risk matrix (paragraph 2.6).

2.4. An investment has been made with the Church, Charities and Local Authority 
Investment Fund (CCLA) in June 2014. CCLA invest in commercial property 
which is rented out to enterprises as retail units, warehousing, and offices. The 
majority of properties owned are in the south of the country where the market is 
currently more buoyant than the north. The Council has in effect bought a share 
of the property portfolio, and returns paid are in the region of 4%. This is a long-
term investment with the potential for capital growth of the investment as property 
prices potentially increase.

2.5. The Net Asset Value of the Property Fund has increased from 300.41p per unit to 
308.04p per unit over a 12-month period to January 2019, an increase of 2.5% in 
the value of the Council’s investment. 

2.6. The matrix on the following page shows how the Council has set its risk appetite 
by being risk averse and putting security and liquidity before yield:

Page 84

Agenda Item 7



Investment Risk Matrix

PROBABLITY of 
DEFAULT 

High
INCREASING 
YIELD

High

F1 A+            
6

F2             
12

F3                 
18

B             
24

C             
30

D             
36

F1 A+             
5

F2           
10

F3            
15

F3             
20

B             
25

C             
30

F1+/AA-                              
4

F1 A                    
8

F2                                 
12                    

F3                       
16                     

F3             
20

B             
24 

F1+/AA                
3

F1 A+                                        
6

F1 A                      
9

£3m

F2                                     
12                    

F3             
15

F3                 
18

F1+/AA+                
2

F1+/AA-                
4         

F1 A+                                        
6

£6m

F1 A                          
8

F2           
10

F2             
12

F1+/AAA               
1    

£19m

F1+/AA+                    
2

F1+/AA              
3

F1+/AA-                      
4

£3m

F1 A+            
5

F1 A+            
6

Low High

SEVERITY of 
CONSEQUENCE

SEFTON RISK 
TOLERANCE INVESTED

LOW 1 - 4 Investment Grade £22.00m
LOW – MEDIUM 5 - 9 Investment Grade £9.00m
MEDIUM 10 - 20 Investment Grade Nil
HIGH 21 - 36 Speculative Grade Nil

Page 85

Agenda Item 7



2.7. The ratio of overnight deposits (short term) to fixed term investments is shown 
below:

2.8. Two fixed term investments of £3m each matured during November 2018, one 
with ANZ bank and one with Lloyds. The deposit with Lloyds was re-invested for 
a further three months at an improved rate of 0.90% (compared to 0.75% 
previously). The deposit returned from ANZ was placed with Money Market 
Funds in order to meet short term liquidity requirements.

3. Interest Earned

3.1. The actual performance of investments against the profiled budget to the end of 
January 2019 and the forecast performance of investments against total budget 
at year end is shown below:

Profiled
Budget

£m

Actual
£m

Variance
£m

Jan-19 0.313 0.359 0.046

 Total 
Budget

£m

Forecast 
Out-turn

£m

Variance
£m

2018/19 0.375 0.432 0.057

3.2. The budgeted investment return for the financial year 2018/19 was set at 
£0.375m on 1st April 2018. The actual investment return to the end January has 
exceeded the profiled budget and the forecast to year end is also showing a 
surplus compared to budget. The additional income is due to a rise in Money 
Market investment rates in response to the Bank of England base rate rise on 2nd 
August. Fixed term deposit rates have also improved more recently and the 
Council has opted to place additional deposits to take advantage of the rise and 
fix these rates for as long as possible.

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19
0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

35.0

40.0

45.0

Property Fund Fixed term Short term

Fixed and Short Term Investments

£m

Page 86

Agenda Item 7



3.3. The Council has achieved an average rate of return on its investments that has 
out-performed the 7 day LIBID and the model portfolio provided by Link:

NB: Link’s January position not available at the time of writing.

4. Interest Rate Forecast

4.1. Link Asset Services, our Treasury Advisors, have supplied the interest rate 
forecast and commentary below:

We do not currently think that the MPC would increase the Bank Rate before any clearing of 
the fog on Brexit. We have taken a more cautious view on the likely pace of progress on Brexit 
and pushed back our first increase in Bank Rate from May to August 2019. Our forecast for 
the end of the three-year forecast period is unchanged at 2.0%.

Financial markets are now expecting a first increase in February 2020 and the next one in 
February 2022.

PWLB rates have fallen over the last three months and this is reflected in our latest forecasts.
Forecasts for average investment earnings beyond the three-year time horizon will be heavily 
dependent on economic and political developments.

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19
0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

Sefton 7 Day LIBID Link

Comparison of Investment Rates

%

Page 87

Agenda Item 7



5. Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID II)

5.1. From 3rd January 2018, the Financial Conduct Authority is obligated to treat all 
Local Authorities as “retail clients” under European Union legislation (MiFID II). 
The client status of the Local Authority relates to its knowledge and experience 
with regards to the use of regulated investment products and the decision-making 
processes it has in place for making such investments. The directive is focused 
on products such as Certificates of Deposit, Gilts, Corporate Bonds and 
investment funds, including Money Market Funds. 

5.2. As at 31st January 2019 the Council has opted up to “professional status” with the 
following institutions to continue to have access to these funds as an investment 
option as they are not available to retail clients:

Money Market Funds

 Aberdeen
 Amundi
 Aviva
 BNP Paribas
 Goldman Sachs
 Invesco
 Morgan Stanley
 Federated Investors
 Insight
 Standard Life

Banks

 Australia and New Zealand Banking Group
 Commonwealth Bank of Australia
 Goldman Sachs International Bank
 Toronto Dominion Bank

Building Societies

 Coventry
 Leeds

Property Funds

 CCLA

6. Capital Financing Strategy

6.1. The Council is currently internally borrowed. This means that the capital 
borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been fully funded 
with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow 
has been used as an alternative measure. This strategy is prudent as investment 
returns remain low whilst reducing the Council’s cost of borrowing. This position 
also reduces counterparty risk.

Page 88

Agenda Item 7



6.2. Due to the timing of grant income and revenues received during the financial year 
the profile of the Council’s cash balances is front loaded. External borrowing in 
the short term may be necessary to maintain the Councils cash flow during March 
2019 when it is forecast that up to £10m of borrowing may be required. Short 
term borrowing from another Local Authority with current offer rates at 0.95% 
over a 3-month period would incur an estimated £23,750 in additional loan 
charges.

6.3. Officers will continue to monitor the cash flow and report to members by the end 
of next quarter regarding any additional borrowing undertaken during March 
2019.

7. Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits

7.1. As at 31st January 2019, the Council has operated within the treasury and 
prudential indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement and in compliance with the Council's Treasury Management Practices. 

Page 89

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Audit and 
Governance 
Committee

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 20 
March 2019

Subject: Corporate Risk Management

Report of: Chief Internal 
Auditor

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

The Corporate Risk Register is presented to each meeting of the Audit and Governance 
Committee.  Since the last Committee, the Corporate Risk Register has been fully 
updated, with one risk closed, one risk escalated and no new risks identified.

Recommendation:

Members are requested to:

Consider the updated Corporate Risk Register, in particular noting the nature of the 
major risks facing the Council, and the controls and planned actions in place to mitigate 
these. 

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

A robust system of risk management will assist the Council in meeting its identified 
objectives. 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)
None

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However, the Council 
benefits from the work of the section in reducing the impact and likelihood (and so the 
cost) of risk.

(B) Capital Costs

There are no direct capital cost implications arising from this report.

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

There are no direct resource implications.
Legal Implications:

There are no legal implications.

Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose: The management of the Council’s risks 
will help to achieve the Council’s Core Purpose.

Protect the most vulnerable: positive impact

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: positive impact

Commission, broker and provide core services: positive impact

Place – leadership and influencer: positive impact

Drivers of change and reform: positive impact

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: positive impact

Greater income for social investment: positive impact

Cleaner Greener: positive impact

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD5578/19) and the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer (LD4702/91) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated 
into the report.

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



(B) External Consultations 

No external consultation has been undertaken.
Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting

Contact Officer: David Eden
Telephone Number: 0151 934 4053
Email Address: David.eden@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report: 

 Corporate Risk Register

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 93

Agenda Item 8



1. Introduction

1.1 Risk Management is defined as ‘systematic application of principles, approach 
and processes to the task of identifying and assessing the risk and the planning 
and implementing of risk responses’.

1.2 Whilst the process of risk management is routinely undertaken within the Council 
in a number of areas, both at a strategic level and operationally, it is recognised 
that there is scope to develop a more integrated risk management approach.  This 
report seeks to continue the process of formalising a system of robust Corporate 
Risk Management, and embedding this into the organisation.  

1.3 An updated Corporate Risk Register is presented at each meeting of this 
Committee. The Corporate Risk Register has been reviewed by senior officers so 
as to ensure that this reflects the most significant risks facing the Council, and 
shows how the Council is managing these.  This should give members assurance 
that there is a robust corporate approach to the management of the most 
significant threats to the achievement of the Council’s objectives.  The updated 
Corporate Risk Register is set out at Appendix A, for noting by the Committee.

2. Key Developments

2.1 Since the December 2018 meeting of the Committee, the Corporate Risk Register 
has been fully reviewed and updated.

2.2 This has resulted in one risk being removed from the risk register, one risk being 
escalated from the Adult Social Care Service (ASC) Register and no new risks 
have been identified. The risk escalated from the ASC Register is: 

 Failure to deliver allocated budget and achieve savings targets
 

2.3     One risk has been removed from the register:

 Failure to effectively implement new ASC Domiciliary Care Services 

The rationale for the removal of the risk from the Corporate Risk Register is that 
after further reflection the risk was considered to be already included in the scope 
of the risk titled “market failure of Adult Social Care provision”.

Page 94

Agenda Item 8



Page 95

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Risk Register
Reported to: SLB (28 February 2019)
Date: 25 February 2019

Details of Risk Inherent Risk

Existing Controls

Residual Risk Actions Target score

R
ef Risk Description Trigger Result

O
w

ne
r

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

Sc
or

e

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

 S
co

re

Proposed Action Plans

A
ct

io
n

O
w

ne
r

Ta
rg

et
D

at
e

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

 S
co

re

A
ct

io
n

St
at

us

Fi
na

nc
e

Dedicated Schools Grant High
Needs Funding for Special
Educational Needs is
inadequate to meet
requirements.

High Needs budgets are under considerable pressure
from increasing numbers of children being diagnosed
with complex and life-long SEND related issues.

National funding allocations are not increasing annually
to reflect increases in local population demand and so
any additional commissioned places need to be
financed from within existing budget envelope.

The number of pupils needing High Needs top-up
funding is increasing year on year, in-house provision is
almost at full capacity and external provision is very
expensive (3 or 4 times more expensive than in-house
provision).

Overspending occurred in 2017/18 (£1.8m) and
2018/19 the forecast overspend is (£2m+) and there is
a chance of continued overspending in 2019/20 and
beyond. HoS&F 4 5 20

Engagement with Head of Schools and Families and the SEN team Managers
on how costs can be contained.

Engagement with special schools actively working with individual schools to
review impact of any proposed changes to their funding, reviewing 3 year
financial plans, identifying any strategic savings to mitigate high calls on DSG
High Needs funding.

Review of place and top up levels of funding to special schools to try to reduce
costs.

Late in 2016 the DfE provided each LA with grant funding to help provide
additional capacity to undertake strategic needs assessment of SEN provision
(£104k for Sefton). This grant has remained unspent and carried forward into
2018/19 for use in appointing an external consultant. The post has been
advertised on the CHEST and a consultant will be engaged to undertake a High
Needs review over the coming months (September 2018-January 2019). It is
hoped that this work will help the Authority to identify cost drivers for change
and more cost effective ways of working.

4 5 20

Schools Forum agreed to move funding between the
DSG funding blocks in 2018/19 (£0.45m from schools)
and (£0.20m from Early Years) to help support High
Needs budget pressures in the current year, but this has
proven to be nowhere near enough to balance the
budget. The projected overspend on High Needs
funding for 2018/19 is £2m+. There is a small Central
DSG reserve (£0.196m) which may be used to partially
offset the overspend but this will need approval by
Schools Forum and leave no reserves available to
support any other DSG pressures.  (P=1,I=1)

Schools Forum have asked Officers to review SEND
spend over the coming year with a view to reducing cost
to within the allocated budget by 2019/20. (P=1,I=O)

Lobbying of Government continues with a view to
securing increased funding. (P=0,I=0)

There is a review team plotting expected demand over
the next 5-10 years, so as to provide clarity on likely
future needs. (P=1,I=0)

HoS&F Ongoing 2 4 8

Fi
na

nc
e

Market failure of Adult Social
Care provision.

Lack of market engagement and market development
due to lack of capacity and resource.

Capability and capacity of the available workforce to
provide domiciliary care.

Lack of diversity of supply in the market to provide
choice and control

Inability to provide packages of care for service users

Lack of alternative providers able to support social care

Poor quality service provision

Significant increase in unmet needs of service users
due to a fragile market that is not developing

HoASC/
HoCSBI 4 5 20

Market Position Statement 2014

Integrated Commissioning Group

Centralised Commissioning Support function

4 5 20

The following actions reduce the risk scoring to the
target scores shown:
Full review of the Market Position Statement and
revision of the Market Position Statement

Review and align strategic plans to current contracts to
ensure Value for Money and objectives are met.

Development of new opportunities through working with
LCR, CCG and wider commissioning partnerships.

Commissioning priorities and full work plan

Workforce development of the independent workforce

Ensure involvement of key stakeholders

As per commissioning workshop, review structure and
workplan to deliver the above (P=2, I=2)

HoCSBI March 2020
Ongoing 3 4 12

Fi
na

nc
e Failure to deliver allocated

budget and achieve savings
targets

Public Sector Reform and reduced ASC budget as part
of overall Council reductions

Increased demand and regulation and interdependent
with ASC001

Overspend on council budget

Poor service reputation

Need to reduce services and workforce

Interdependent with ASC001

HoASC 4 5 20

Regular budget monitoring

Scheme of delegation

Annual budget

Contracts with providers

Commissioning staff

Standard item on DMT and Managers Team Meetings

Exception reporting in place on spend and ASC waiver process

4 5 20

The following actions reduce the risk scoring to the
target scores shown:
Devolved budget responsibilities and budget monitoring
arrangements developed

Clear communication of budget position across service

Clear identification of savings against targets relating to
PSR and other projects

Close working relationship with finance colleagues

Better forecasting and projections

Review of high cost packages

Robust review strategy in place

Finance
Service
Manager

HoASC

31/03/2019

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

July 2019

October
2019

3 4 12

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 8



St
at

ut
or

y/
Le

ga
l

Data breach resulting in the
wrongful release of personal
and/or sensitive information

Policies and processes coordinated by Information
Management and Governance Executive Group are not
adhered to, resulting in a higher incidence of breaches
caused by human error.

System error occurs.

Failure to comply with legal requirements; loss of
privacy, distress or harm to the data subject; damage to
Council's reputation; loss of public confidence; and
significant financial penalties.

SLB 4 5 20

Information management and governance, including data breaches and actions
to prevent data breaches, is overseen by the Information Management and
Governance Executive Group (IMGEG), which consists of Heads of Service
with lead responsibilities for key aspects of IMG (i.e. designated Chief
Information Officer, Senior Information Risk Owner and Lead officer for ICT
infrastructure) supported by other officers with key roles relating to IMG.

Each service has designated Information Asset Owners and Information Asset
Administrators. Policies, procedures, processes and issues are communicated
to these officers through the Information Management and Governance Tactical
Group.

Support, co-ordination, advice and guidance is provided corporately and
appropriate training/refresher training is in place.

The Council has implemented policies, procedures and processes to prevent,
manage and respond to potential and actual data breaches.

4 5 20

Appropriate resourcing, prioritisation and focus on
information management and governance across the
Council include the following (P=2, I=3)

Regular monitoring and review by IMGEG of policies,
procedures and processes to prevent, manage and
respond to potential and actual data breaches.

Ongoing review of information systems to ensure no
inappropriate or unforeseen data linkages exist within
systems or reports. Review of systems ahead of
updates to identify any unintended changes.

Ongoing education of staff and monitoring of activity by
IAOs and IAAs to identify and prevent areas of human
error.

Regular review of information contained to ensure
information is accurate and any information that should
be removed is removed.

Regular reporting by IMGEG to SLB and Audit and
Governance Committee as necessary.
Maximise the opportunities from the Council's ICT
Transformation to increase and embed effective
information management and governance.

IMGEG Ongoing 3 2 6

St
at

ut
or

y/
Le

ga
l

Failure to manage historic
records effectively

The risk is amplified by the implementation of GDPR (in
particular the right to erasure and tighter deadlines for
response to Subject Access Requests).   In addition,
the Council’s Asset Maximisation programme which
may lead the Council to leaving, redeveloping or selling
buildings where records are held and moving to Paper
Light working arrangements.

Failure to comply with legal requirements relating to
retention, consideration, release or correct disposal of
historical information; damage to Council's reputation;
loss of public confidence; and significant financial
penalties.

Historical information is not stored or managed
correctly, such that it is lost, damaged or incorrectly
disposed of.

Not known to the organisation when making relevant
decisions; retained when it should have been correctly
disposed of.

SLB 4 5 20

Information management and governance is overseen by the Information
Management and Governance Executive Group (IMGEG), which consists of
Heads of Service with lead responsibilities for key aspects of IMG (i.e.
designated Chief Information Officer; Senior Information Risk Owner; and Lead
officer for ICT infrastructure), supported by other officers with key roles relating
to IMG.

Each service has designated Information Asset Owners and Information Asset
Administrators. Policies, procedures, processes and issues are communicated
to these officers through the Information Management & Governance Tactical
Group.

Support, co-ordination, advice and guidance is provided corporately and
appropriate training/refresher training is in place.

The Council has implemented policies, procedures and processes for the
management of information and has in place corporate contracts for
appropriate digitisation, disposal and archive storage services.

The Council has implemented a Historic Records Pilot Project to identify the
scale, condition and correct management of all historic records held. This
project reports regularly to IMGEG.

4 5 20

Appropriate resourcing, prioritisation and focus on
information management and governance across the
Council, including support for Information Asset Owners
and Information Asset Administrators including action on
the following. (P=2,I=3)

Regular monitoring and review by IMGEG of policies,
procedures and processes for the management of
information, including historic information.

Regular monitoring and review by IMGEG of the
progress and implications of the Historic Records Pilot
Project, including reporting to SLB and Audit and
Governance Committee as necessary.

Maximise the opportunities from the Council's ICT
Transformation to increase and embed effective
information management and governance.

IMGEG Ongoing 2 3 6

Fi
na

nc
e The provision of Children's

Social Care is not financially
sustainable.

Increased placement costs in Children's Social Care not
included in budget.

Numbers of children in care increases, demand for
placements can not be met as cost of placements
increases.

Capacity not sufficient to undertake effective market
development.

Costs increase and quality and sufficiency of
placements decreases.

Budget overspend. HoCSC 4 4 16

Fortnightly Placement Panel to monitor placement costs.

Programme of LAC reform including recruitment of in-house carers.

Development of disability pathway.

Development of market place.

Annual Budget.

Regular review of budgets to identify and mitigate pressures.

4 4 16

Development of market to meet need.

Opportunities to collaborate across LCR and develop
market.

An action plan has been developed as part of the
Budget Development work which details an immediate
action plan over the next 6 weeks to address the
increasing costs of placements due to rising demand,
this has been appropriately resourced and is being
overseen by Executive Director for CSC & Health (P=1,
I=1)

HoCSC/
Service

Managers/
Commissioni

ng

March 2020
Ongoing 3 3 9

Details of Risk Inherent Risk

Existing Controls

Residual Risk Actions Target score

R
ef Risk Description Trigger Result

O
w

ne
r

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

Sc
or

e

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

 S
co

re

Proposed Action Plans

A
ct

io
n

O
w

ne
r

Ta
rg

et
D

at
e

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

 S
co

re

A
ct

io
n

St
at

us

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 8



Fi
na

nc
e

Financial sustainability post
2020.

The national review of local government funding and
the next financial settlement places further strain on the
Council's overall medium term budget.

Due to the scale of budget reductions since 2010 there
is a risk that further suitable cost-saving/income
generating measures will be difficult to identify.

Degradation of service could have an adverse impact
on residents and communities

The  reputation of the Council may be compromised

Financial sustainability could be compromised

SLB 5 5 25

Work is on going to deliver financial sustainability up to and including 2019/20.
In addition to this work has commenced on developing the Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP) for 2020/21 and beyond together with initial work on
potential budget proposals and projects that could be developed under the
Framework for Change.

4 4 16

Refresh and develop the Council's MTFP up to 2020/21
(P=0, I=1)

Continually monitor the delivery of the current 3 year
budget (P=1,I=0)

Start the development of budget proposals for 2020/21
and beyond as part of the Framework for Change 2020.
(P=1,I=0)

Work on the development of MTFP for the three year
period 2020/21 to 2022/23.

ELT and SLB Ongoing 2 3 6

St
at

ut
or

y/
Le

ga
l Inadequate capability to prepare

for and respond effectively to a
major incident affecting the
Council or occurring in Sefton as
per the Council's responsibilities
under the Civil Contingencies
Act 2004.

A major incident occurs affecting the Council or the
Borough.   This risk is accentuated as the government
has determined the terror threat level as "severe" and
was raised to "critical" on two occasions in 2017.

1) Loss of human life, illness or serious injury

2) Major damage or destruction to infrastructure,
property and/or the environment

3) Disruption or loss of critical services such as
transport, communications, utility services

4) Reputational or financial harm to the authority

SLB 4 5 20

Emergency Response Manual and Major Incident Guidance in place.

Revised Command and Control structure in place which defines Strategic and
Tactical level officers.

Emergency Duty Co-ordinators invited to attend quarterly briefing sessions and
all are able to access Resilience Direct containing incident response plans.

Relevant training provided to Emergency Duty Co-ordinators and volunteers on
an ongoing basis.

Attendance and participation in Merseyside Resilience Forum and joint
planning across Merseyside.

Humanitarian volunteers in place and team strengthened following successful
recruitment drive.

Plans for response and recovery are the subject of ongoing review and update,
particularly in light of the government's assessment of the terror threat level as
"severe".

Ongoing development and review of supporting plans.

Business Impact Analysis training for the Risk and Resilience team has been
completed.

Ongoing exercise of plans and involvement of Strategic and Tactical level
officers.

4 4 16

Business Continuity Planning Implementation Plan to be
devised and implemented which includes the following.
(P=1,I=2)
Business Continuity Policy and strategy to be devised
and approved and presented to Cabinet in March 2019

Business Impact analysis across all services are
currently being undertaken.

Business Continuity Plans to be devised during 2019

Business Continuity Testing and exercising to be
undertaken.

SLB April 2019 3 2 6

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re

Failure to adequately invest in
the Highway network and
associated assets.

Budget reductions; inadequate funding levels to meet
need.

Deterioration of highway assets

Potential increase in claims

Financial and reputational risks

Potential increase in accidents resulting in injury and/or
death

SLB 4 5 20

Essential work is prioritised within available budget. Regular inspections of
most assets to monitor and guide prioritisation of works in order to mitigate risk.

Regular updates provided to Cabinet Member.

Preventive surface treatments used to prolong the life of the network and to
treat more of it than if more long-term maintenance solutions were used (i.e.
resurfacing)

4 4 16
Reports submitted to Strategic Capital Infrastructure
Group to seek additional funding to maintain or replace
highway network/assets. (P=1, I=0)

THI SM Ongoing 2 3 6

Details of Risk Inherent Risk

Existing Controls

Residual Risk Actions Target score

R
ef Risk Description Trigger Result

O
w

ne
r

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

Sc
or

e

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

 S
co

re

Proposed Action Plans

A
ct

io
n

O
w

ne
r

Ta
rg

et
D

at
e

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

 S
co

re

A
ct

io
n

St
at

us

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 8



In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re

The Council is the victim of a
cyber attack.

Malware, ransomware or another virus infects the
Council's systems.

Services will not have access to systems and data as
standard, and will have to fall back on non-ICT delivery
methods, albeit without access to key data.

Data breach occurs.

Financial impact of ransom
Reputational damage

HoCR 4 5 20

Cyberattack prevention measures are in place, including

- Upgraded Council firewalls and active SIEM monitoring service.
- Anti malware tools
- New Acceptable use policy ready for deployment
- LGA Stocktake completed
- PSN Accrediation achieved

Back-up disaster recovery facility is in place at a separate site, allowing Agilisys
to restore the top 20 critical systems.

Agilisys has a Business Continuity-Disaster Recovery plan in place which
covers an action plan for this priority restoration, and the subsequent
restoration of all other systems.- this is aligned to the Business Continuity work
programme

Ongoing monitoring in in place via ICT governance arrangements
Windows Defender anti-virus software is constantly updated- the Council will
move to ESET imminently

Communication to employees regarding the rise in malware attacks is in place,
with plans to roll out better user education on this topic.

4 4 16

The ongoing ICT Transformation programme will see
the majority of systems and data migrated to Microsoft
Azure cloud hosting, which will reduce the overall risk;
however a review of all security controls is underway by
the Security Committee

Deployment of industry standard ESET solution in
progress

Formal rollout of Cyber Security Awareness training.

Develop new Business Continuity-Disaster Recovery
plan in line with wider Corporate reivew of Business
Continuity

HoCR Ongoing 2 3 6

St
at

ut
or

y/
Le

ga
l

Lack of progress in Ofsted
Action Plan

Pupils with EHCPs do not make progress in
comparison with peers

Co-production with parents not clearly evidenced

Lack of progress in joint work with health
Pupils with EHCPs do not make progress in
comparison with peers

Loss of reputation

Intervention from DFE
HoS&F 4 4 16

Progress monitoring of plan with DFE on quarterly basis

Joint work with Sefton Parent carer forum

4 4 16

Increased accountability to SEND Steering Group (P=0,
I=0)
Reviewed progress with Parent Forum (P=1, I=0)
Agreed new priorities (P=0,I=1)

HoS&F Apr 2019 2 3 6

St
at

ut
or

y/
Le

ga
l

Inadequate child and school
record system

Lack of capacity to change and system investment

Paper files

Labour intensive filing/recording/use of data

Missed deadlines national PIs and FoIs/subject access

No ROPA completed

HoS&F 4 4 16

Best efforts to maintain paper based files

CAPITA system – partial use

Business case to expand CAPITA

4 4 16 PID for single SEN record integrated with other ICS
(P=1, I=0) HoS&F Apr 2019 2 3 6

Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t/G
ro

w
th

Failure to mitigate risks of, or
develop and maximise
opportunities from Brexit

Implications of Brexit, both positive and negative, for
Sefton not fully understood

Lack of clarity at Central Government level regarding
the details of Brexit

Failure to engage effective with LCR partners on
implications and opportunities

Unable to plan effectively for negative impacts which
exacerbate local economic challenges and may worsen
the Council's financial position

Not positioned to proactively facilitate maximisation of
any opportunity arising from Brexit in the borough, and
in the wider city region

SLB 4 4 16

The Council monitors for the launch of consultations and publication of
briefings.
For example, consultations / calls for evidence have been launched by
Government regarding transport trends and the sustainable delivery of goods

The Council is represented and engaged in the City Region's Brexit working
group. The  has set up a steering group consisting of officers from across the
organisation. An identified SPOC has been identified (Ian Willman). There is
regular liaison with with Merseyside Resilience Forum and weekly returns with
regard to any potential risks at a local level.

4 4 16

The following actions: (P=1, I=1)
Review required of likely implications, risks and
opportunities of Brexit for Sefton

Proactive engagement in Liverpool City Region's Brexit
working group

Strategic review with key private sector (and other)
partners. Continued engagement with the MRF with
regard to potential risks. Meetings of the Brexit Steering
Group are continuing. Updates to ELT from the SPOC
are provided weekly. SPOC are to meet with the
Communications Team.

SLB Ongoing 3 3 9

Details of Risk Inherent Risk

Existing Controls

Residual Risk Actions Target score

R
ef Risk Description Trigger Result

O
w

ne
r

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

Sc
or

e

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

 S
co

re

Proposed Action Plans

A
ct

io
n

O
w

ne
r

Ta
rg

et
D

at
e

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

 S
co

re

A
ct

io
n

St
at

us

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 8



Report to: Audit and 
Governance 
Committee

Date of Meeting: 20 March 2019

Subject: Risk and Audit Service: Performance Report

Report of: Chief Internal 
Auditor

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No 

Summary:
This report details the performance and key activities of the Risk and Audit Service for 
the period 22 November 2018 to 7 March 2019.

Recommendation(s):
Members are requested to:

(i) Note the progress in the delivery of the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan and the 
activity undertaken for the period 22 November 2018 to 7 March 2019

(ii) Note the contributions made by the Health and Safety, Insurance and Risk and 
Resilience teams in managing key risks.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):
Approval of the recommendations will facilitate the continued provision of a 
comprehensive and effective Risk and Audit Service.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)
None

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However, the Council 
benefits from the work of the section in reducing the impact and likelihood (and so the 
cost) of risk.

(B) Capital Costs
There are no capital costs arising from this report.

Page 101

Agenda Item 9



Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
There are no specific resource implications arising from this report.

Legal Implications:
There are no specific resource implications arising from this report.

Equality Implications:
There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose: The Council’s Risk and Audit Service 
is a key enabler to the delivery of the Council’s Core Purpose as set out below

Protect the most vulnerable: Positive

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: Positive

Commission, broker and provide core services: Positive

Place – leadership and influencer: Positive

Drivers of change and reform: Positive

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: Positive

Greater income for social investment: Positive

Cleaner Greener: Positive

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD5585/19) and Chief Democratic and Legal Officer 
(LD4709/19) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated into the 
report.

(B) External Consultations 
None

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting

Contact Officer: David Eden
Telephone Number: 0151 934 4051
Email Address: David.Eden@sefton.gov.uk

Page 102

Agenda Item 9



Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report: 
 Risk and Audit Service Performance Report

Background Papers:

Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 (as approved by this Committee on 23 March 2018)

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 The Risk and Audit Service is managed by the Chief Internal Auditor, who reports 
to the Head of Corporate Resources.

1.2 The mission of the service is “to deliver a first-class risk and audit service that is 
highly respected and valued by Sefton and is the envy of our peers”.  

1.3 The Service has the following objectives:

 To lead the Council in embedding a system of internal control and risk 
management that facilitates the achievement of the organisation’s 
objectives.

 To be a valued corporate influence in promoting the due consideration of 
risk in Council decisions, strategies and plans.

 To align the service with the Council’s changing needs.

1.4 In delivering this mission and objectives, the Service encapsulates the following 
teams:

 Internal Audit
 Health and Safety
 Insurance
 Risk and Resilience 

1.5 This report summarises the main aspects of the performance of the Service during 
the period 22 November 2018 to 7 March 2019, and gives members a detailed 
overview of the following areas:

 Internal Audit: 
 work undertaken in the period, including a summary of work and an outline 

of the high priority recommendations made
 performance against Key Performance Indicators
 developments relating to this part of the Service.

 Health and Safety, Insurance and Risk and Resilience:
 work undertaken in the period, with key data provided 
 developments relating to these parts of the Service.

Page 103

Agenda Item 9



The report concludes by looking ahead to the forthcoming activities being 
undertaken by the service.

Page 104

Agenda Item 9



Audit and Governance Committee
20 March 2019 David Eden

Chief Internal Auditor
Risk and Audit Service
Corporate Resources
Magdalen House
30 Trinity Road 
Bootle
L20 3NJ

Risk and Audit Service: Performance 

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 9



Page 2 of 25

Contents

1. Executive Summary Page 3

2. Introduction Pages 4 - 5

3. Internal Audit Performance Update Pages 6 - 11

4. Health and Safety Performance Update Pages 12 - 15

5. Insurance Performance Update Pages 16 - 20

6. Risk and Resilience Performance Update Pages 21 - 23

7. Looking Ahead Page 24

8. Conclusions Page 25

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 9



Page 3 of 25

1. Executive Summary

1.1 This report summarises the performance and activity of the Risk and Audit Service for the period 22 November 2018 – 7 March 
2019.

1.2 The report covers each of the areas of the service:

 Internal Audit
 Health and Safety
 Insurance
 Risk and Resilience.

1.3 The report highlights the following key points:

 This has continued to be a busy period for the Service, with the completion of a number of key pieces of work.  The 
performance indicators and key data in this report reflect this positive progress.

 The service continues to seek to support the effective management of risk, which is especially pertinent as the Council 
transforms.

 The development of the service continues, with a number of improvements having been completed in the period.

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 9



Page 4 of 25

2. Introduction

2.1 The Risk and Audit Service is managed by the Chief Internal Auditor.

2.2 The mission of the Service is “to deliver a first-class risk and audit service that is highly respected and valued by Sefton and is the 
envy of our peers” and the Service has the following objectives:
 To lead the Council in embedding a system of internal control and risk management that facilitates the achievement of the 

organisation’s objectives
 To be a valued corporate influence in promoting the due consideration of risk in Council decisions, strategies and plans
 To align the service with the Council’s changing needs.

2.3 In delivering this mission and objectives, the Service encapsulates the following teams:

 Internal Audit – this statutory service provides the internal audit function for all areas of the Council, including maintained 
schools.   Internal Audit can be defined as: “an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organisation’s operations. Internal Audit helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing 
a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance 
processes.” (Public Sector Internal Audit Standards)

 Health and Safety – supports Council officers and members in providing an effective health and safety management system 
that meets the Council’s statutory health and safety duties; thereby controlling the risks of injury and ill health to staff and 
others affected by the Council’s activities.

 Insurance – fulfils the duty to provide an appropriate insurance service for the Council, including claims management, 
advice on insurance issues and the management of insurable risk.

 Risk and Resilience – develops risk management and mitigation strategies for the Council on emergency planning 
(ensuring that the Council meets its statutory responsibilities as a Category 1 responder under the Civil Contingencies Act 
2004), public safety and business continuity issues. 

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 9



Page 5 of 25

2.4 This report summarises the main aspects of the performance of the Service for the period 22 November 2018- 7th March 2019, 
covering the following areas:

 Internal Audit: 
 work undertaken in the period, including a summary of work completed and an outline of the high priority recommendations 

made.
 performance against Key Performance Indicators
 anti-fraud update
 developments relating to this part of the Service.
 Health and Safety, Insurance and Risk and Resilience:
 work undertaken in the period, with key data provided where applicable 
 developments relating to these parts of the Service.

2.5 The report concludes by looking ahead to the challenges which will be addressed in the forthcoming period.

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 9



Page 6 of 25

3. Internal Audit: Performance Update

3.1 Work Completed 

During the period 22 November 2018 to 7 March 2019, 33 audits were completed.  Audits shown in italics are at draft stage – 
completed Action Plans are awaited from clients. These can be summarised as:

Recommendations
Audit Title Audit Opinion High Medium Low

Accounts Payable - Bank Mandate Moderate 1 8 1
Treasury Management Minor 0 1 2
Netherton Children's Centre Moderate 1 11 4
Linaker Children's Centre Moderate 1 5 2
Whistleblowing Policy Moderate 2 7 0
Grievance Procedure Moderate 0 1 1
Invest Sefton Negligible 0 0 0
Court of Protection / Appointeeships Follow Up Major 3 8 2
CSC Placement Audit Moderate 0 10 1
St Oswalds Primary Good 0 4 3
VfM Schools Music Service - Hire of a venue No Risk 0 0 0
Rimrose Hope Primary School Very Good 0 1 1
St.Jerome’s Primary School Fair 0 4 1
Forefield Primary School Good 0 4 1
VFM - Investment and Employment - Tourism - Southport 
Visitor Guide

Minor 0 1 0

VFM - Health and Wellbeing - Leisure - Maintenance, Service 
and Repair of Swimming Pool Ultra Violet System 

Minor 0 1 0

VFM - Locality Services Provision - Purchase of fuel for 
vehicles and plant via a fuel card

Moderate 0 1 0

ASC Debt Major 6 20 4
Land Management Moderate 0 4 4
St Patrick's Primary School Fair 0 6 1

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 9



Page 7 of 25

Audit Title Audit Opinion
Recommendations

High Medium Low
Waterloo Primary School Fair 0 7 2
Bishop David Sheppard Primary School Good 0 3 3
Holy Family School Fair 1 5 1
LAS Project Ongoing Assurance Provided
LCS Project Ongoing Assurance Provided 
Meols Cop High School Follow Up Review Assurance provided
STEP Grant Q3 Assurance provided to facilitate certification
M58 Q3 Assurance provided to facilitate certification
Urban Traffic Control Q2 Assurance provided to facilitate certification
Urban Traffic Control Q3 Assurance provided to facilitate certification
Local Highways Maintenance Incentive Fund Assurance provided to facilitate certification
Disabled Facilities Grant 2017-18 Assurance provided subject to final approval
Liverpool City Region - Integrated Transport Capital Block 
Funding 2017-18

Assurance provided subject to final approval

The high priority recommendations outlined in the audit reports can be summarised as:

Accounts Payable – Bank Mandate
 Arrangements should be made to make the field of supplier ID mandatory on the ‘Your Details’ form.

Netherton Children’s Centre
 Invoices should not be processed for payment in advance of services or goods having been received.

Linaker Children’s Centre
 A number of recommendations were made to improve the handover process of the Children Centre from Linaker 

Primary School to Sefton Council 
Whistleblowing Policy

 The Whistleblowing Policy should be reviewed, updated and approved.  Responsible officers should be reassigned and 
provided with appropriate training and support where required. Associated policies linked to the Whistleblowing Policy, 
should be updated to ensure that they are up to date and reflect current practices.

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 9



Page 8 of 25

 A system for the retention of future whistleblowing disclosures should be introduced in accordance with the 
Whistleblowing Policy with access restricted to authorised personnel and retained in accordance with the Council’s 
Document Retention Policy and GDPR requirements.

Court of Protection / Appointeeships
 A comprehensive Corporate Appointeeship policy document should be devised and referred to Corporate Legal Services 

for review prior to it being approved and disseminated to relevant parties.
 Social Workers when making a Corporate Appointeeship referral should obtain where possible information relating to the 

service users next of kin, and any relevant personal financial information with the aim of speeding up the distribution of 
estate. The draft template and process should be shared with the Data Protection Officer to ensure that the process 
complies with the Council’s Data Protection obligations.

 Appropriate separation of duties should be introduced in the system for the administration, financial recording, monitoring 
and reporting of Corporate Appointeeships.

Adult Social Care Debt – (Draft) 
  A number of recommendations have been made to improve the policy framework for both internal staff and service users 

to ensure that current relevant information is readily available. In addition there are further recommendations to ensure 
that effective analysis is undertaken of existing practices with the aim of improving visibility of the current debt position, 
maximising efficiencies, reducing costs and providing smarter outcomes to service users.

Holy Family High School – (Draft) 
 The school should continue to monitor the current budget and ensure that the deficit for 2019/20 does not increase, as 

agreed, and contact the Head of Schools and Families to obtain the deficit recovery budget plan it should work towards.  

3.2 Key Performance Indicators 

Description and Purpose Target Actual Variance and Explanation
Percentage of the Internal Audit Plan completed
This measures the extent to which the Internal Audit Plan agreed by this 
Committee is being delivered.  The delivery of the Plan is vital in ensuring 
that an appropriate level of assurance is being provided across the 
Council’s systems.

88%

See graph 
below

75%

See graph 
below

-13%
 Small impact of sickness 

absence
 Audit Manager role not 

undertaking planned 
audit activity

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 9



Page 9 of 25

Description and Purpose Target Actual Variance and Explanation
 Two staff members 

leaving the organisation 
in Feb 2019.

Percentage of Client Survey responses indicating a “very good” or 
“good” opinion
This measures the feedback received on the service provided, and seeks 
to provide assurance that Internal Auditors conduct their duties in a 
professional manner.

100% 100% No variance

Percentage of recommendations made in the period which have 
been agreed to by management
This measures the extent to which managers feel that the 
recommendations made are appropriate and valuable in strengthening 
the control environment.

100% 100% No variance

    

21%

37%

65%

88%

100%

15%

30%

48%
54%

0%

To 13/6/18 To 05/9/18 To 21/11/18 To 07/03/18 To 31/3/18
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Target
Actual

Figure 1: Percentage of the Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 Completed (profiled to coincide with the Audit and Governance Committee reporting dates          

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 9



Page 10 of 25

3.3 Anti-Fraud 

The following anti-fraud work has been undertaken during the period:

 A series of messages continues to be posted on a rotational basis on the Council’s website, Yammer, intranet and social 
media so as to encourage staff and residents to report suspected fraud, and to provide a deterrent effect.  

 The Team co-ordinates the Council’s involvement in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) in which the Council is required 
by law to participate. 

3.4 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

As previously reported to the Committee, following the external assessment in March 2018 which confirmed that the service 
“generally complies” with the Standards the team, the Audit Team has been continuing to implement the Development Plan to 
ensure the continued development and improvement of the service going forward, with a particular emphasis on the service being 
able to meet the expectations of a modern service.

3.5 Resources

 The completion of the audit plan has been affected by the vacancy for the Audit Manager from 1st September 2018. The 2019/20 
Audit Plan relied on the Audit Manager undertaking some audit activity. The post was temporarily appointed to in December 2018 
by an internal candidate with strong finance and management experience but with limited background of undertaking audits. The 
Audit Manager role will be vacant from the 15th March 2019. In addition, the Value for Money Auditor and one of the Principal 
Auditors left the organisation in February 2019. 

 As previously highlighted in December there was a requirement to refresh and renew the business continuity framework within the 
Council which is a statutory activity for the Council. Business continuity is a key component of the Council’s risk and control 
framework helping to ensure that services can continue to deliver in the event of a major incident such as the loss of a building 
without which services to vulnerable residents could be affected. On investigation, the business continuity framework required 
additional capacity,  to deliver the change in a timely manner to help protect service users. A decision was made to front load the 
business impact analysis activity with Internal Audit staff, where there was a requirement to meet service teams across the Council, 
to ensure there was a consistent and speedy approach to completing this stage of the business continuity framework. The activity 
has had a side benefit of providing real insight to the audit team of key priority processes within the service areas they have 
assisted which will aid them in future reviews.   

 In addition, the December update highlighted that action was required to facilitate the completion of the operational risk registers 
across the Council. The Council’s risk management strategy is a fundamental foundation to the Council’s risk and control 

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 9



Page 11 of 25

framework which has set out the three levels of risk registers that should be in place across the Council of Corporate, Strategic 
and Operational. Previous reports have highlighted that the Corporate and Service Risk Registers have been in place and work 
was required to embed the operational risk registers across the Council. As the staff undertaking the business continuity analysis 
would be meeting the same teams for business continuity and risk a decision was made to combine the two activities and roll out 
the facilitation of the operational risk registers. 

 A total of 90 days has been allocated to the two exercises and if the work had been included in the progress, along with the Audit 
Manager audits the audit team performance would have been in excess of 75%. The operational risk registers has largely been 
completed and the business impact analysis remains on track to be completed by 30th April 2019.

 These two additional activities have strengthened and improved the Council’s risk and control framework, built insight and 
additional skills into the Internal Audit Team and transferred skills and knowledge to the service area teams. The audits that have 
not been completed will be transferred into the 19/20 Audit Plan which in essence delays the completion of the activity.

 The revised activity whilst in itself a change from originally planned will not compromise the completion of the Annual Governance 
Statement for 2018/19.

 The paper on the audit plan and charter discusses the resources and the assumptions used to deliver the 19/20 audit plan. There 
is some time built in the plan for the development of Business Continuity Plans and for monitoring the operational risk registers 
however the time planned is significantly lower.P

age 115

A
genda Item

 9



Page 12 of 25

4. Health and Safety: Performance Update

4.1     Work Completed 

During the period, the following key pieces of work/projects have been undertaken:

A Health and Safety Improvement plan has been developed and was presented to the Corporate Health and Safety Committee in 
December 2018 for approval.  The plan includes the agreed actions from the health and safety audit that had been undertaken by 
the internal audit team. Proposed actions in the health and safety improvement plan to be undertaken over the next six months 
include:

 An updated Health and Safety Policy to be presented to the next Cabinet (April 2019) for final approval. The policy to include 
health and safety objectives and key performance indicators.

 A survey to be undertaken to determine the effectiveness of the current health and safety management system aimed at 
collating views from Heads of Service’s point of view.

 Ensure that an effective Health and Safety training needs assessment is designed for all employees before the development 
of a health and safety training plan.

 Enhance the embedding of risk assessments across the Council
 Design and present an annual health and safety report to the Cabinet for approval. 

The Health and Safety Team have been working with the Property Services to facilitate the formal definition of building related 
statutory compliance responsibilities for the current building arrangements where the Head of Services are responsible to the 
shortly to be implemented proposed landlord corporate landlord function where Property Services takes central responsibility for 
the Council’s buildings.

The Health and Safety team is currently developing a formal risk-based buildings compliance programme for the next 12 months 
with Property Services along with a detailed testing programme that will be provided to buildings managers in advance to enable 
independent verification of the statutory checks that should be undertaken concerning such matters as gas safety, electrical safety, 
asbestos, and legionella.  

4.2      Key Incident Data

The data below relates to the period 16 November to 18 February 2019 using the new incident reporting system:

P
age 116

A
genda Item

 9



Page 13 of 25

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

Bruising
Bump to Head

Chemical Splash
Dizziness

Entrapment
Exercise

Harmful Substance
Lifting

No Injury
Physical Impact

Racial/Hate Crime
Road Traffic Accident

Slip,Trip or Fall at Floor Level
Swimming Difficulty

Violence
Riddor

Q2 Q3

Incidents reported from 1st Sept 2018 to 18th Feb 2019 by Quarter

The main cause of accidents for the stated period across all services is slip trips and falls.

There were four RIDDOR reportable accidents in this quarter which relate to:
 A member of staff slipping over on a patch of ice in the car park
 A member of staff moving and handling equipment – suffered broken bone in hand
 A member of the public slipped on icy road
 A member of staff lost balance whilst using equipment fell and fractured wrist.

All RIDDOR incidents are reviewed by the Health and Safety team to ensure that the accident is properly investigated and that 
the lessons learnt are shared with other service areas where appropriate.

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 9



Page 14 of 25

The numbers of RIDDOR incidents reported in the past two years is detailed in the graph below:

Q1 - 
2017/2018 

Q2 - 
2017/2018

Q3 - 
2017/2018

Q4 - 
2017/2018

Q1 - 
2018/2019

Q2 - 
2018/2019

Q3 - 
2018/2019

Q4 - 
2018/2019

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Numbers of RIDDOR Reports from Q1 2017/19 to date 

Numbers of RIDDOR reports has slightly reduced during the current quarter and generally are at a low level for the number of staff 
employed across the Council. However, the overall number of reported accidents has increased reflecting increased use of the 
new incident reporting system. There are no significant trends or incidents within the data that requires intervention at this point. 
The Health and Safety Team will continue to actively monitor the RIDDOR reports and actively provide support to colleagues and 
managers.

4.3     Developments 

 The results of the Work-Related Stress survey completed in July 2018 have been analysed by the Business Intelligence Team. A 
meeting is to be held with Head of Public Health to discuss the next steps and how the information can be fed back to staff who 
participated.

 The team is undertaking work to support the Council to strengthen its system of risk assessment.  This will entail the review and 
update of the risk assessment guidance, its relaunch with appropriate publicity, and associated support and review of compliance.

P
age 118

A
genda Item

 9



Page 15 of 25

 Actions that have been completed from the Health and Safety Improvement Plan include:

 A survey to be undertaken to determine the effectiveness of the current health and safety management system aimed at 
collating views from Heads of Service’s point of view has been completed and a draft report has being developed.

 Initial meeting has been held with Health and Safety Co-ordinators across the Council with a focus of further embedding risk 
assessments within the Council’s.

 A revised Health and Safety Policy has been presented to the Corporate Health and Safety Committee, Cabinet Member for 
Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services and Strategic Leadership Board for approval.

 A formal flow of assurance to the Corporate Health and Safety Committee has been implemented.
 Revised accident reporting guidance document has been devised and issued to Schools.

 There will be a continued focus during the next quarter of delivering the Health and Safety Improvement Plan with planned priorities 
of:

 Embedding the revised Corporate Health and Safety Policy once it has been signed off.
 Development of an annual report on health and safety management to be provided to the Cabinet.
 Devising a health and safety training needs assessment that can be adopted across the Council
 Improve the reporting of health and safety performance on key health and safety objectives
 Improve the current reporting on building related statutory compliance
 Improving the system for undertaking risk assessments across the Council
 Enhance building compliance review by health and safety team.

P
age 119

A
genda Item

 9



Page 16 of 25

  
5. Insurance: Performance Update

5.1     Work Completed 

During the period, the following key pieces of work/projects have been undertaken:

 A Portfolio Risk Review has been undertaken with Zurich who secured the Council’s Material Damage (Property) 
insurance cover following the recent tender exercise.  Zurich are keen to build on their knowledge of the Authority and 
discussions were held in February 2019 on the current portfolio risk management practices with the aim of identifying 
areas where we are currently managing risks to a good standard and those where some improvements may be required.  
This half day session involved colleagues from Sefton Arc, the Assets and Property Management Team and the Health 
and Safety Team.  Following a planned inspection programme by Zurich the findings will be reported back to Sefton to 
assist in strengthening practices. 

 Following the recent appointment of the Board of Directors for Sandway Homes (Housing Development Company), 
Directors & Officers Liability cover has been obtained following an exercise with the Council’s insurance brokers.  
Discussions will continue with insurance broker to ensure that all risks/liabilities to the Company/the Council as a result 
of the project are considered and, where appropriate, insurance cover is sourced.

 The new allocation of risk management days as part of the contract for liability insurance cover has enabled several 
sessions to be placed in the diary for the coming months.  The sessions include the topics of control of contractors, 
Highways Code of Practice and leadership training on health and safety for the Heads of Service and Directors. 

 A review meeting has recently been held between the Council, the Council’s insurance broker, liability insurer and the 
liability insurers claim management handler to ensure there is an effective working relationship between all parties with 
the aim of mitigating the Council’s liability risk exposure.  Overall the contracts are running smoothly, and the insurers 
passed on their appreciation for the clear and concise way that the Council’s risk profile was presented in the recent 
tender.  Other regular meetings will continue to be held throughout the year.

 The Council continues to defend cases robustly to protect the public purse.  The team also works extensively with Service 
Teams to improve the management of insurable risk in areas where there are high numbers of claims.  The Council 
generally has high defensibility rates and such risk management activity will assist in maintain and potentially improving 
the position further. 

P
age 120

A
genda Item

 9



Page 17 of 25

5.2       Key Claims Data 

 The following graphs relate to the period since the last update (1st November 2018 to 31st January 2019) and include:
 Numbers of claims for Public Liability (PL), Employers Liability (EL) and motor claims received by Sefton Council for the 

period 1st November 2018 to 31st January 2019 compared to the same period in 2017/2018
 Value of the reserves for PL, EL and motor claims received by Sefton Council for the period 1st November 2018 to 31st 

January 2019 compared to the same period in 2017/2018
 The average value for PL, EL and motor claims received by Sefton Council for the period 1st November 2018 to 31st 

January 2019 compared to the same period in 2017/2018.

Numbers of PL claims have increased by approximately 40% in this period compared to a year ago.  There appears to be no 
specific reason for this spike, however recent bouts of inclement weather and local canvassing by solicitors may be factors. 
The numbers of EL claims remain constant and at very low levels for the size of the organisation. The number of Motor claims 
has decreased significantly (78%) which hopefully shows more own driver awareness. 

P
age 121

A
genda Item

 9



Page 18 of 25

The value of the new PL claims has increased which reflects the higher number of claims received in 2018 compared to 2017. 
Although numbers of EL claims have remained constant, reserves are approximately 30% lower in this period due to the nature 
of injuries alleged to have been suffered. As the number of Motor claims received has largely decreased this is also reflected 
in the reserve of the same.  

P
age 122

A
genda Item

 9



Page 19 of 25

As would be expected due to numbers received, the graph highlights that average PL reserve claim costs have increased from 
2017 to 2018.  The decrease in EL average costs relates purely to injuries alleged to have been suffered and the decrease in 
Motor reserve claims costs reflects in lower numbers of claims received.

5.3     Developments

 In liaison with colleagues in Legal Services, work is underway via the North West legal Consortium to procure a new 
contract for solicitors to represent Sefton in litigated insurance claims.  The new contract will be effective form 1st April 
2019.  

 The insurance for Bootle New Strand currently sits outside of the main portfolio of the Council's insurance cover.  An 
exercise is currently underway with the Council’s Brokers in order that comparative competitive quotes can be sought to 
ensure that the current arrangements represent value for money.

     Work continues to improve the service provided to the Council including:
 Improved reporting on claims to service areas
 Improving reporting on claims to Audit and Governance Committee

P
age 123

A
genda Item

 9



Page 20 of 25

 Improve motor risk management to minimise motor claims
 Review warranty conditions for the new policies to identify new procedures to be developed
 Market research and prepare for broker review to take place in Q1 2020
 Evaluate Sefton’s approach to the new national Highways Code of Practice

 The allocation of risk management days will continue to be used to develop the Council’s management of risk and its 
impact on insurable risk.  The days have already been used to great effect to supplement the Council’s inhouse training 
offer with a range of high-quality health and safety and risk management training.   

 The Council is currently exploring the options to obtain external valuations for the art paintings, silverware and other 
artefacts located in Bootle and Southport Town Halls. 

 

P
age 124

A
genda Item

 9



Page 21 of 25

6. Risk and Resilience: Performance Update

6.1 Work Completed 

During the period, the following key pieces of work/projects have been undertaken:

 A SWOT analysis has been undertaken for the Risk and Resilience Team which has looked at Emergency Planning, 
Business Continuity and Risk Management. Improvement Plans have been developed to take each area forward and 
work has started to implement the actions. A focus of the work plan has been to fully integrate the Risk and Resilience 
Team with other functions within the wider Audit and Risk Team to build capacity and capability. 

 The Risk Team with the assistance of members of the Audit Team have met with Team Managers from all services to 
facilitate production of Operational Risk Registers. These operational risk registers are now substantially completed with 
a small number drafted awaiting final sign off.  This task has been completed successfully ahead of planned 
implementation target of April 2019. The Risk Team continue to ensure that up to date service risk registers are in place 
for all service areas.

 Work has been completed with Heads of Service to continually review the Corporate Risk Register, to ensure that this is 
fully reflective of the major risks facing the Council.  Progress being made has been positive in increasing and improving 
the extent to which robust risk management arrangements are embedded across the Council.  An updated Corporate 
Risk Register is presented to this Committee for approval.

 The Risk Team have produced a Business Continuity Policy and Strategy which have been approved by Strategic 
Leadership Board.  The Policy is due to be presented to Cabinet for approval in April 2019.  A business continuity e-
learning module has been created to raise awareness. This will be uploaded to the Corporate Learning portal and will be 
mandatory for all council staff to complete. The e-learning is due to be launched in Q2 2019. 

 Business impact analysis training was undertaken by the Risk and Audit Team in November 2019.  A template for 
undertaking business continuity impact analysis was developed following the training and meetings with teams from all 
service areas are currently under way and remain on track to be completed by 30th April 2019. The outcome of the meeting 
with the service teams is to ensure that there is a completed Business Impact Analysis Template to identify their key 

P
age 125

A
genda Item

 9



Page 22 of 25

priority activities. This formal analysis will enable a business continuity plan for the service area to be developed. The 
next priority is to agree the design of a template for the business continuity plans before populating with the data sourced 
from the analysis exercise.

 The Risk Team continue to work on a multi-agency level and represent Sefton Council on various emergency planning 
Task and Finish groups via the Merseyside Resilience Forum (MRF). They have also participated in a number of multi-
agency exercises including Waste Management Recycling plant fires, major regional Power Failure and Consequence 
Management of terrorist attack.

 The Risk Team are supporting Sefton Council and multi-agency planning around EU Exit arrangements and working 
closely with the Single Point of Contact officers at Strategic and Tactical levels with weekly reporting and internal planning 
in addition to attendance at co-ordination group meetings.  The team are also undertaking event planning for the 2019 
Grand National Race meeting in April and the British Masters Golf Championship. 

 The Risk Team have worked collaboratively with Green Sefton and Corporate Communications to host the Maritime and 
Coastguard Agency to deliver a live play exercise - Coldstart at Ainsdale beach on 19 February 2019.  They have also 
delivered a workshop for the continuing Operation London Bridge planning which they are co-ordinating for Sefton 
Council. 

6.2 Developments 

 The Team will work towards developing a greater understanding of the Council’s risk appetite and this, along with the 
continual review of risk registers across all levels will ensure robust risk management arrangements are embedded 
across the Council.  

 The continued priority for business continuity is the collation of data from the business impact analysis with the next 
priority the development of business continuity plans in Q1/Q2 of the 19/20 financial year. 

 Develop scenario based training sessions for key staff and managers with more active roles in the business continuity 
management system process.

 The next priorities for emergency planning include:
 Walkthrough and scenario testing of the Sefton Command and Control model within the Major Emergency Plan
 The development of service area emergency plans to underpin the Major Emergency Guidance and identify the 

operational capability required to support the strategic and tactical emergency management structures

P
age 126

A
genda Item

 9



Page 23 of 25

 Develop operational response plans with Green Sefton and multi-agency stakeholders for coastal shoreline clean- 
up.

 Refreshing the training plans for the Emergency Duty Officers
 Develop and deliver Rest Centre Management training and a multi-agency Rest Centre exercise.  

P
age 127

A
genda Item

 9



Page 24 of 25

7. Looking Ahead

7.1 The development journey for the Service continues, with a number of key projects being undertaken to embed the role and 
influence of the team over the next quarter:

 Following the completion of the operational risk registers a new risk register review system will be developed to ensure 
that the operational risk registers are refreshed in a timely manner and there are ongoing linkages to the service registers.  

 Define a draft risk management statement on appetite to be shared with Strategic Leadership Board. 

 Continued delivery of the Internal Audit Plan 2018/19, focusing attention on reviewing the key risks to the organisation, 
which will evolve as the Council changes.

 Refreshing and refining the Council’s management of emergency planning, risk management and business continuity.

 Developing clear accountability for health and safety related matters in Council buildings.

 Implementing the Health and Safety Improvement Plan.

 Supporting the Framework for Change by providing audit advice and guidance on the risk and control issues emerging 
from the Public Sector Reform and economic development and strategic investment projects. 

P
age 128

A
genda Item

 9



Page 25 of 25

  8. Conclusions 

8.1 Internal Audit has made limited progress in the completion of the Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 in the period due to the two additional 
activities on business continuity and risk management which have strengthened the risk and control framework.  Performance in 
respect of the agreement of recommendations and the feedback from clients has been particularly positive and reflects the value 
added by the Service. 

8.2 The Council’s accident record continues to be positive.  There is a significant workload of activities required to improve the health 
and safety management system over the next six months with the associated aim of increased reporting visibility for key 
governance committees. There remains a focus on establishing a clear system for gaining assurance of compliance across all 
Council buildings.

8.3 The new insurers are working closely with the Council and the transfer to the new providers has been successful. Current claims 
performance remains good although work is required to improve motor risk management.

8.4 The team is playing a key role in supporting the implementation of risk management across the Council, through co-ordinating the 
review of the Corporate Risk Register, and supporting Heads of Service and their teams in implementing operational risk registers. 
Further work is planned to improve risk management within the Council by adopting enhanced risk management techniques.

8.5 Progress has been made in embedding business continuity with a clear road map for the next six months. There are clear 
implementation plans in place across each of the service areas to deliver improvements which will result in improved services as 
well as an integrated risk and audit approach.

P
age 129

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Audit and 
Governance 
Committee

Date of Meeting: 20 March 2019

Subject: Internal Audit Charter and the Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 for 
approval. 

Report of: Chief Internal 
Auditor

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No 

Summary:
This report presents the Internal Audit Charter and the Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 for 
approval. 

Recommendation(s):
Members are requested to:

(i) Approve the Internal Audit Charter
(ii) Approve the Internal Audit Plan 2019/20.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):
Approval of the recommendations will facilitate the continued provision of a 
comprehensive and effective Risk and Audit Service.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)
None

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However, the Council 
benefits from the work of the section in reducing the impact and likelihood (and so the 
cost) of risk.

(B) Capital Costs
There are no capital costs arising from this report.

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
There are no specific resource implications arising from this report.

Page 131

Agenda Item 10



Legal Implications:
There are no specific resource implications arising from this report.

Equality Implications:
There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose: The Council’s Risk and Audit Service 
is a key enabler to the delivery of the Council’s Core Purpose as set out below

Protect the most vulnerable: Positive

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: Positive

Commission, broker and provide core services: Positive

Place – leadership and influencer: Positive

Drivers of change and reform: Positive

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: Positive

Greater income for social investment: Positive

Cleaner Greener: Positive

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD5589/2019) and Chief Democratic and Legal 
Officer (LD4713/2019) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated 
into the report.

(B) External Consultations 
None

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting

Contact Officer: David Eden
Telephone Number: 0151 934 4051
Email Address: David.Eden@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report: 
 Internal Audit Charter and Audit Plan for 2019/2020

Page 132

Agenda Item 10



Background Papers:

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 From 1 April 2013, new Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (hereafter referred 
to as “the Standards”) came into effect. These were jointly developed by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Chartered 
Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA). 

1.2 The Standards replaced the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government (2006) as the mandatory guidance, and provide a coherent and 
consistent internal audit standards framework for the whole of the public sector. 

1.3 Two of the key requirements of the Standards are:

 “The purpose, authority, and responsibility of the internal audit activity must be 
formally defined in an internal audit charter, consistent with the Definition of 
Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, and the Standards. The chief audit 
executive must periodically review the internal audit charter and present it to 
senior management and the board for approval.” (Standard 1000)

 “The chief audit executive must establish a risk-based plan to determine the 
priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the organisation‘s goals”. 
(Standard 2010)

1.4 This report sets out the Internal Audit Charter and Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20, 
in order to comply with these Standards and demonstrate the role, purpose and 
focus of Internal Audit during the forthcoming year.

Page 133

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Governance Committee
20 March 2019 David Eden

Chief Internal Auditor
Risk and Audit Service
Corporate Resources
Magdalen House
30 Trinity Road 
Bootle
L20 3NJ

Risk and Audit Service: 
Internal Audit Charter and Plan 2019/20

P
age 135

A
genda Item

 10



Page 2 of 25

Contents

1. Executive Summary Page 3

2. Introduction Page 4

3. Internal Audit Charter Page 5

4. Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 Pages 6 - 9

5. Conclusions Page 10

6. Appendix A: Internal Audit Charter Pages 11 - 21

7. Appendix B: Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 Pages 22- 25

P
age 136

A
genda Item

 10



Page 3 of 25

1. Executive Summary

1.1 This report provides the Internal Audit Charter and Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 for approval.  

1.2 These documents are key requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (hereafter referred to as “the Standards”), 
and so are vital in demonstrating the Internal Audit service’s compliance with these Standards.

1.3 The Internal Audit Charter sets out the role, purpose and authority of Internal Audit.

1.4 The Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 demonstrates how internal audit resources will be used during the forthcoming financial year so 
as to provide assurance on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control system.

1.5 Particular attention has been paid to ensuring that the Internal Audit Plan is reflective of the changing risk landscape of the Council, 
and that it provides tangible added value to the Council in maintaining an effective system of internal control and management of 
risk. The plan has a particular emphasis on the role Internal Audit can play at a strategic level. This has been achieved through 
consultation with relevant stakeholders, and through incorporation of the principles of industry best practice.

P
age 137

A
genda Item

 10



Page 4 of 25

2. Introduction

2.1 From 1 April 2013, new Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (hereafter referred to as “the Standards”) came into effect. These 
were jointly developed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Chartered Institute of Internal 
Auditors (CIIA). 

2.2 The Standards replaced the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government (2006) as the mandatory guidance, 
and provide a coherent and consistent internal audit standards framework for the whole of the public sector. The Standards have 
been updated a number of times, most recently with effect from 1 April 2017.

2.3 Internal Audit is defined by the Standards as “an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value 
and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes”.

2.4 In executing its duties and complying with the Standards, Internal Audit must establish two key documents and these must be 
presented to this Committee for approval on an annual basis:

 Internal Audit Charter
 “The purpose, authority, and responsibility of the internal audit activity must be formally defined in an internal audit charter, 
consistent with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, and the Standards. The chief audit executive must periodically 
review the internal audit charter and present it to senior management and the board for approval.” (Standard 1000)

 Internal Audit Plan 
“The chief audit executive must establish a risk-based plan to determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with 
the organisation‘s goals”. (Standard 2010)

2.5 This report presents both documents for approval, and outlines the purpose of the documents and the process underpinning their 
compilation.

P
age 138

A
genda Item

 10



Page 5 of 25

3. Internal Audit Charter

3.1 In compliance with the Standards, Internal Audit is required to establish a Charter which sets out its role, purpose and authority.

3.2 This provides clarity and legitimacy to the role of Internal Audit in the organisation, and assists the function is operating in line 
within an agreed framework.

3.3 The document acts as a guide for Internal Auditors in their daily work, but also assists officers and members of the Council in 
understanding what internal audit is and how it operates.

3.4 The Charter has been prepared so as to meet the Standards and incorporates all relevant requirements.

3.5 The Charter is shown at Appendix A.  This is reviewed and presented to this Committee on an annual basis.P
age 139

A
genda Item

 10



Page 6 of 25

4. Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

Plan Compilation and Principles

4.1 The Standards state that the “Chief Audit Executive” must “establish risk based plans to determine the priorities of the internal 
audit activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals”. They refer to the need for the plan to reflect the assurance framework, risk 
management arrangements and input from management and “the board”. 

4.2 In meeting this Standard, an extensive consultation exercise has been undertaken to identify potential areas for audit, comprising: 

 Review of the Corporate Risk Register 
 Review of Service Risk Registers
 Review of Committee reports and decisions
 Cumulative audit knowledge and experience
 Findings and outcomes from previous audit work 
 Engagement with Heads of Service 
 Evaluation of the risks highlighted by the Internal Audit Plan 2018/19.

4.3 A risk assessment exercise took place so as to form an overall view on the level of organisational risk each area poses.  This was 
then used to inform a draft Internal Audit Plan, which was shared with the Chief Executive, external audit and senior managers 
prior to being presented to this meeting for approval. 

Organisational Context

4.4 The organisational context for the Internal Audit Plan remains one of significant and fast-paced change.  Transformation in the 
design and delivery of services has continued over the past 12 months and is planned to continue.   

4.5 In this context, the Internal Audit Plan must continue to be flexible so as to be able to adapt to and reflect the changing risk 
landscape of the organisation.  Any material changes made to the plan during the year will be notified to this Committee. 

P
age 140

A
genda Item

 10



Page 7 of 25

Composition

4.6 The Internal Audit Plan has been based upon 771 available audit days.  This is following the deduction of annual leave and other 
non-audit time.

4.7 The Plan is composed of the following areas:

 Corporate and Cross-Cutting work, which provides assurance relating to a system that has applicability across the 
organisation – for example Corporate Governance, Risk Management, Procurement

 Service-Specific work, which provides assurance relating to systems that have applicability in one or perhaps two Services 
– for example placement budgets (Children’s Social Care), regeneration schemes.

 Main Financial Systems – work to review the Council’s financial systems, such as Accounts Payable and Council Tax
 Advice and Guidance– so as to enable the service to provide input to developing systems and emergent risks

4.8 For the forthcoming financial year the audit plan reflects that there are three current vacancies within the Internal Audit team and 
prudently includes lead time for the successful recruitment of new staff members to be in post. To compensate for the reduction 
in capability a number of activities that had been historically undertaken by the audit team will be undertaken by the wider Risk 
and Audit Team during the financial year. These activities include:

 Risk Management advice to service areas
 Counter Fraud Strategy
 Anti- Fraud Reviews
 NFI Co-ordination
 Compliance with the PSIAS
 Value for Money

4.9 The proposed plan does include time allocated for the Internal Audit Team to provide support for the roll out of the revised 
Business Continuity Plans over the first six months of the audit plan.   

4.10 In summary there is a temporary reduction in resources for the forthcoming financial year however with the removal of a number 
of activities from the audit plan which can be undertaken by the wider Risk and Audit Team there will be sufficient coverage and 
depth in the audit plan to provide a good level of assurance.

P
age 141

A
genda Item

 10



Page 8 of 25

This graph below shows the allocation of days across the key risk areas:

Corporate/Cross-
Cutting

Service- Specific

Main Financial 
Systems

Advice and Guidance 

Figure 1: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 - Composition

Reporting and Performance

4.11 Progress against the Plan and key details of the outcomes of audit work will continue to be presented to every meeting of this 
Committee.

4.12 The suite of performance indicators will continue to be used to measure the delivery of the Internal Audit Plan and the effectiveness 
of the work undertaken.  These will continue to be reported to each meeting of this Committee. 

P
age 142

A
genda Item

 10



Page 9 of 25

 The performance indicators and associated targets for 2018/19 are:

Description and Purpose Target
Percentage of the Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 completed
This measures the extent to which the Internal Audit Plan agreed by this Committee is being delivered.  The delivery 
of the Plan is vital in ensuring that an appropriate level of assurance is being provided across the Council’s systems.

100%

Percentage of Client Survey responses indicating a “very good” or “good” opinion
This measures the feedback received on the service provided, and seeks to provide assurance that Internal Auditors 
conduct their duties in a professional manner.

100%

Percentage of recommendations made in the period which have been agreed to by management
This measures the extent to which managers feel that the recommendations made are appropriate and valuable in 
strengthening the control environment.

100%

Percentage of audit recommendations implemented at the original target date
This measures the extent the effectiveness and timeliness to which management implements audit recommendations. 
Provides assurance that control weakness are addressed promptly.

65%

4.13 The Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 is shown at Appendix B.
 

P
age 143

A
genda Item

 10



Page 10 of 25

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The Internal Audit Charter sets out the role, purpose and authority of the Internal Audit section, and assists Internal Audit in 
complying with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

5.2 The Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 has been prepared on a risk basis, following consideration of a number of sources and consultation 
with key stakeholders.

5.3 The Internal Audit Plan acknowledges the organisational context and aligns resources with the most pertinent risks facing the 
Council during this time of significant and fast-paced change. There is a temporary reduction in coverage for 2019/20 which is 
offset by some historical activity being undertaken by the wider Risk and Audit Team however there will be sufficient coverage 
and depth in the audit plan to provide a good level of assurance.P

age 144

A
genda Item

 10



Page 11 of 25

Appendix A

Internal Audit Charter

March 2019

Page 145

Agenda Item 10

https://www.sefton.gov.uk/sefton-home.aspx


Page 12 of 25

Version Control 

Owner: Internal Audit

Date Approved: Presented to Audit and Governance Committee for 
approval 20 March 2019

Date Implemented: Immediately following approval

Version Number: 3.0

Next Review Due: March 2020

Page 146

Agenda Item 10



Page 13 of 25

1. Introduction
1.1 The requirement for local authorities to have an Internal Audit function is determined by Section 

151 of the Local Government Act 1972, which requires that authorities ‘make arrangements for 
the proper administration of their financial affairs’.  The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (SI 
2015/234), regulation 6, more specifically require that a ‘relevant authority must undertake an 
effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal audit standards or guidance.”  

2. Purpose of this Charter
2.1 The purpose of the Internal Audit Charter is to define internal audit’s purpose, authority and 

responsibility.  It establishes internal audit’s position within Sefton Council and defines the scope 
of internal audit activities. 

2.2 This Charter also covers the arrangements for the appointment of the Head of Internal Audit and 
internal audit staff, and identifies the nature of professionalism, skills and experience required.

2.3 This Charter will be appropriately updated following any changes to the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards (“the Standards”) or internal audit’s operating environment and, as a minimum, 
will be reviewed by the Chief Internal Auditor and presented to the Audit and Governance 
Committee on an annual basis.

3. Definitions
3.1 The Standards define Internal auditing is as “an independent, objective assurance and consulting 

activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve 
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes”.

3.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (“the Standards”) require that the Internal Audit 
Charter defines the terms ‘board’ and ‘senior management’ in relation to the work of internal audit.  
For the purposes of internal audit work, the ‘board’ refers to the Sefton Council Audit and 
Governance Committee, which assumes responsibility for overseeing the work of internal audit.  
Sefton Council’s senior management team is the Senior Leadership Board members.

3.3 Sefton Council’s Chief Internal Auditor fulfils the Chief Audit Executive (CAE) role as defined by 
the Standards.

4. Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
4.1 The internal audit function is required to comply with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

(PSIAS).  The Relevant Internal Audit Standard Setters, which includes the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), adopted the PSIAS from 1 April 2013.  These 
Standards replaced the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the 
United Kingdom 2006 (“The Code”). The PSIAS encompass the mandatory elements of the 
Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) International Professional Practices Framework 
(IPPF). 

Page 147

Agenda Item 10



Page 14 of 25

4.2 Compliance with the Standards is mandatory and must be subject to both internal and external 
assessment.  The Chief Internal Auditor must undertake a self-assessment on a regular basis.  
An external assessment must also be conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, 
independent assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation.  The results of these 
assessments will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

5.  Mission of Internal Audit
5.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards define the mission of Internal Audit as:

“To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, 
advice and insight.”

5.2 The mission of Sefton Council’s Risk and Audit Service is:
“To deliver a first class risk and audit service that is highly respected and valued by Sefton, and 
is the envy of our peers.”

6. Responsibilities
6.1 Internal audit is responsible for establishing procedures and applying the required resources to 

ensure that the service conforms to the Definition of Internal Auditing and the Standards.  All 
members of the Internal Audit team must also demonstrate conformance with the Code of Ethics, 
which is attached at Annexe 1 and the Core Principles:

 Demonstrates integrity
 Demonstrates competence and due professional care
 Is objective and free from undue influence (independent)
 Aligns with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the organisation
 Is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced
 Demonstrates quality and continuous improvement
 Communicates effectively
 Provides risk-based assurance
 Is insightful, proactive, and future-focused
 Promotes organisational improvement

6.2 The Chief Internal Auditor must deliver an annual internal audit opinion and annual report that are 
used to inform Sefton Council’s Annual Governance Statement.  The annual internal audit opinion 
must conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control.  This is the ‘assurance role’ of internal audit. 

6.3 Internal Audit may also provide an independent and objective consultancy service, which is 
advisory in nature and is generally performed at the specific request of senior management.  The 
aim of the consultancy service is to assist line management to improve the Council’s risk 
management, governance and internal control arrangements.

6.4 Sefton Council’s Chief Executive has overall responsibility for the establishment of a sound 
system of internal control, and through the Annual Governance Statement, is required to 
demonstrate that this is in place and that actions are being taken to address any identified 
governance issues.

Page 148

Agenda Item 10



Page 15 of 25

6.5 Sefton Council’s Head of Corporate Resources acts as the Responsible Financial Officer as 
defined by section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, which requires every authority in 
England and Wales to "... make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs 
and shall secure that one of their Officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs".  
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 emphasise the need for effective financial 
management and sound systems of internal control. They require that the Council should maintain 
an adequate and effective system of internal audit for their accounting records and control 
systems. It is a function of the Chief Financial Officer to direct Internal Audit and ensure that it is 
adequate for the Authority's purposes.

6.6 The Council’s Chief Legal and Democratic Officer is the designated Monitoring Officer.  This is a 
statutory appointment under Section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 as 
amended by paragraph 24 of schedule 5 Local Government Act 2000. The role involves 
ensuring the Council’s compliance with any General Guidance issued, from time to time, by the 
Standards Committee and the Monitoring Officer; making lawful and proportionate decisions; 
complying with the Council's Constitution and standing orders.

6.7 Sefton Council will ensure it has taken all necessary steps to provide internal audit with 
information on its objectives, risks, and controls to allow the proper execution of the audit strategy 
and adherence to internal audit standards.  This will include notifying internal audit of any 
significant changes in key control systems which may affect the internal audit plan.

6.8 Management has a responsibility to respond promptly to audit plans, reports and 
recommendations.

6.9 Responsibility for monitoring and ensuring the implementation of agreed recommendations rests 
with management and is monitored by Internal Audit and reported to the Audit and Governance 
Committee.

6.10 Where Sefton has joint ventures, shared services or where services are outsourced the Chief 
Internal Auditor will be responsible for providing risk based assurance on the activities which 
would be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee.

7. Independence of Internal Audit
7.1 Internal Audit must be independent and internal auditors must be objective in performing their 

work.  The Chief Internal Auditor must confirm the organisational independence of Internal Audit 
at least annually.  Internal Audit has no operational responsibilities.

7.2 Any operational (non-audit) activities undertaken by the Chief Internal Auditor or a member of the 
Internal Audit team will be recorded and any conflict of interest declared, so as to ensure that the 
independence of audit work is not seen to be compromised.

7.3 The Chief Internal Auditor is also responsible for the operational management of the Insurance, 
Risk and Health and Safety functions, and there are safeguards in place to avoid any potential 
conflict of interest or impairment to objectivity.  This involves a clear separation of duties in audit 
work in these areas and clarity of reporting lines.  Terms of reference for such audits are shared 
with the Head of Corporate Resources, as is the resulting report, so as to provide transparency.

Page 149

Agenda Item 10



Page 16 of 25

8. The Chief Internal Auditor
8.1 The Chief Internal Auditor is appointed by Sefton Council and must have sufficient skill, 

experience and competencies to work with senior management and the Audit and Governance 
Committee to influence and inform the risk management, governance and internal control 
arrangements of Sefton Council. 

8.2 The Chief Internal Auditor is responsible for ensuring that the members of the Internal Audit team 
possess the appropriate knowledge, skills, qualifications and experience to deliver the audit plan 
and meet the requirements of the Standards.  

8.3 The Chief Internal Auditor reports to the Head of Corporate Resources through the Senior 
Manager for Finance.  The Chief Internal Auditor, or an appropriate representative of the internal 
audit team, attends meetings of the Audit and Governance Committee unless, exceptionally, the 
Committee decides that they should be excluded from either the whole meeting or for particular 
agenda items.  

8.4 The Chief Internal Auditor shall have an independent right of access to the Chair of the Audit 
Governance Committee, if required.  In exceptional circumstances, where normal reporting 
channels may be seen to impinge on the objectivity of the audit, the Chief Internal Auditor may 
report directly to the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee.

8.5 Internal Audit will co-operate with and assist External Audit.

9.  Scope of Internal Audit
9.1 The Chief Internal Auditor should develop and maintain a strategy for providing the Head of 

Corporate Resources with an objective evaluation of, and opinions on, the effectiveness of the 
Council’s risk management, governance and internal control arrangements.  Internal Audit’s 
activities should be undertaken effectively and efficiently. The annual Internal Audit Plan will be 
risk based, prepared in consultation with Heads of Service and Directors and be presented 
to the Audit and Governance Sub-Committee for approval.  The opinions of the Chief Internal 
Auditor are a key element of the framework of assurance needed to inform the completion of the 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS).

Opinion Work

9.2 The internal audit activity must evaluate and contribute to the improvement of governance, risk 
management and control processes using a systematic and disciplined approach.

Governance

9.3 Internal audit must assess and make appropriate recommendations for improving the governance 
process in its accomplishment of the following objectives:

 promoting appropriate ethics and values within Sefton Council; 
 ensuring effective organisational performance management and accountability; 
 communicating risk and control information to appropriate areas of Sefton Council; and 
 co-ordinating the activities of and communicating information to the Audit and Governance 

Committee, external and internal auditors and management.

Page 150

Agenda Item 10



Page 17 of 25

Risk Management

9.4 Internal audit must evaluate the effectiveness of, and contribute to, the improvement of risk 
management processes by:

 assessing organisational objectives to support and align with Sefton Council’s corporate 
objectives; 

 ensuring significant risks are identified and assessed; and
 ensuring that audit recommendations are appropriate to address key risk areas identified.

Internal Control

9.5 Internal audit must assist the organisation in maintaining effective controls by evaluating their 
effectiveness and efficiency and by promoting continuous improvement. The internal audit activity 
must evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of controls in responding to risks within the 
organisation’s governance, operations and information systems regarding: 
 achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives; 
 reliability and integrity of financial and operational information;
 economical, effective and efficient use of resources;
 effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes; 
 safeguarding of Sefton Council’s assets and interests from losses of all kinds, including those 

arising from fraud, irregularity corruption or bribery; 
 compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts.

9.6 The Chief Internal Auditor must ensure appropriate internal audit arrangements are in place in 
respect of partnership or joint working arrangements, where relevant.

Non - Opinion Work

9.7 Internal Audit may provide, at the request of management, a consultancy service which evaluates 
the policies, procedures and operations put in place by management.  A specific provision will be 
made in the Internal Audit Plan to allow for such work.

9.8 The Chief Internal Auditor must consider the effect on the opinion work before accepting 
consultancy work or management requests over and above the contingency allowed for in the 
Internal Audit Plan.  Approval would be sought from the Head of Corporate Resources and the 
Audit and Governance Committee for any significant additional consulting services not already 
included in the Internal Audit Plan, prior to accepting the engagement.  The Chief Internal Auditor 
must consider if consultancy work contributes towards the overall opinion.  

Fraud

9.9 Managing the risk of fraud is the responsibility of line management.  The Head of Corporate 
Resources has specific responsibilities in relation to the detection and investigation of fraud and 
may request internal audit to assist with the investigation of suspected fraud or corruption, in 
accordance with the Investigation Protocol. Internal audit should be notified of all suspected or 
detected fraud, corruption or impropriety, to inform their opinion on the control environment and 
their Audit Plan. 

 

Page 151

Agenda Item 10



Page 18 of 25

Reporting

9.10 The Chief Internal Auditor will agree reporting arrangements with the Head of Corporate 
Resources which will include procedures for the:

 distribution and timing of draft audit reports;
 Manager’s responsibilities in respect of responding to draft audit reports;
 distribution of finalised audit reports;
 follow up by internal audit of agreed recommendations; and 
 escalation of recommendations where management responses are judged inadequate in 

relation to the identified risks.

9.11 The Chief Internal Auditor will present a formal report annually to the Chief Executive, Head of 
Corporate Resources and the Audit and Governance Committee giving an opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of Sefton Council’s framework of governance, risk management, and 
internal control.  This report will conform to the PSIAS, and will provide a summary of the work to 
support the opinion.  It will be timed to support the production of the Annual Governance 
Statement.  Reports of progress against the planned work will be presented to the Audit and 
Governance Committee on a quarterly basis during the year.

 
Internal Audit Access Rights

9.12 Where necessary in the conduct of their work, internal auditors are entitled to require and receive:

 access to all records, documents and correspondence relating to any financial or other 
relevant transactions, including documents of a confidential nature;

 access at all reasonable times to any land, premises and officer of Sefton Council;
 the production of any cash, stores or other property of Sefton Council under an officer’s 

control; and
 explanations concerning any matter under investigation.

Internal Audit Resources

9.13 If the Chief Internal Auditor or the Audit and Governance Committee consider that the level of 
audit resources or the terms of reference in any way limit the scope of internal audit, or prejudice 
the ability of internal audit to deliver a service consistent with the Definition of Internal Auditing 
and the Standards, they should advise the Chief Executive and the Head of Corporate Resources 
accordingly.

Page 152

Agenda Item 10



Page 19 of 25

Annexe 1 - Internal Audit Code of Ethics
Requirements

In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, internal auditors in UK public sector 
organisations must conform to a Code of Ethics. 

If individual internal auditors have membership of a professional body then he or she must also comply 
with the relevant requirements of that organisation.

The purpose of the Code of Ethics is to promote an ethical culture in the profession of internal auditing. 
A Code of Ethics is necessary and appropriate for the profession of internal auditing, founded as it is on 
the trust placed in its objective assurance about risk management, control and governance.

The Code of Ethics includes two essential components:

1. Principles that are relevant to the profession and practice of internal auditing; 

and

2. Rules of Conduct that describe behaviour norms expected of internal auditors. 

These rules are an aid to interpreting the Principles into practical applications and are intended to guide 
the ethical conduct of internal auditors.

The Code of Ethics provides guidance to internal auditors serving others.
The term ‘Internal auditors’ refers to members of recognised Professional Bodies (e.g. CIPFA, IIA) and 
those who provide internal auditing services within the definition of internal auditing.

Applicability and Enforcement

This Code of Ethics applies to both individuals and entities that provide internal auditing services. 
Disciplinary procedures of professional bodies and employing organisations may apply to breaches of 
this Code of Ethics.

Integrity

Principle: 
The integrity of internal auditors establishes trust and thus provides the basis for reliance on their 
judgement.

Rules of Conduct:

Internal auditors:

 Shall perform their work with honesty, diligence and responsibility.
 Shall observe the law and make disclosures expected by the law and the profession.
 Shall not knowingly be a party to any illegal activity, or engage in acts that are discreditable to the 

profession of internal auditing or to the organisation.
 Shall respect and contribute to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the organisation.

Page 153

Agenda Item 10



Page 20 of 25

Objectivity

Principle:
Internal auditors exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating and 
communicating information about the activity or process being examined.
Internal auditors make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances and are not unduly 
influenced by their own interests or by others in forming judgements.

Rules of Conduct:

Internal auditors:

 Shall not participate in any activity or relationship that may impair or be presumed to impair their 
unbiased assessment. This participation includes those activities or relationships that may be in 
conflict with the interests of the organisation.

 Shall not accept anything that may impair or be presumed to impair their professional judgement.
 Shall disclose all material facts known to them that, if not disclosed, may distort the reporting of 

activities under review.

Confidentiality

Principle:
Internal auditors respect the value and ownership of information they receive and do not disclose 
information without appropriate authority unless there is a legal or professional obligation to do so.

Rules of Conduct:

Internal auditors:

 Shall be prudent in the use and protection of information acquired in the course of their duties.
 Shall not use information for any personal gain or in any manner that would be contrary to the law 

or detrimental to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the organisation.

Competency

Principle:
Internal auditors apply the knowledge, skills and experience needed in the performance of internal 
auditing services.

Rules of Conduct:

Internal auditors:

 Shall engage only in those services for which they have the necessary knowledge, skills and 
experience.

 Shall perform internal auditing services in accordance with the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

 Shall continually improve their proficiency and effectiveness and quality of their services.

Internal auditors who work in the public sector must also have regard to the Committee on Standards of 
Public Life’s Seven Principles of Public Life (the “Nolan Principles”):

Page 154

Agenda Item 10



Page 21 of 25

 Selflessness;
 Integrity;
 Objectivity;
 Accountability
 Openness;
 Honesty; and
 Leadership.

Further information on these principles can be found at:

www.public-standards.gov.uk

Page 155

Agenda Item 10

http://www.public-standards.gov.uk/


Page 22 of 25

APPENDIX B - INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19
Days Days

RESOURCES PLANNED AUDIT WORK: SUMMARY 
Gross days 1344
Less:
Annual leave 177 Economic Growth and Strategic Investment 45
Bank holidays 66
Non-Audit (CIA and AM only) 171 Corporate and Cross-Cutting 116
Personal Development Review (PDR) 8
Planning and Management 45 Corporate Governance 40
Professional Development 36
Sickness 30
Team Meetings and Briefings 40 ICT 45

Grants and Accounts 39
Completion of work in progress 15
Follow up of previous recommendations 25

Service-Specific 409

Adult Social Care 81
Children’s Social Care 56
Communities 25
Corporate Resources 93
Locality Services: Commissioned 24
Inward Investment and Employment 15
Public Health and Wellbeing 10
Regeneration and Housing 10
Schools and Families 35
Strategic Support 60

Main Financial Systems 95

Advice and Guidance 12

Contingency 30

Net available audit days          771 Total planned audit days 771

P
age 156

A
genda Item

 10



Page 23 of 25

DETAILED PLAN OF AUDIT WORK (1)
Days

Economic Growth and Strategic Investment 45 ICT 45
Framework for Change (Key Project Delivery) 15 Infrastructure 20
Sandway Homes 15 Critical ICT Applications 10
Commercial activities 15 Sefton at Work Information Security 5

ICT leavers 10

CORPORATE AND CROSS-CUTTING 116 Grants and Accounts 39
Risk Management support 6 Liverpool City Region – STEP Grant 6
Business Continuity 10 Troubled Families Grant 10

M58 Junction 1 Improvements Grant 4
Disabled Facilities Grant 5

Corporate Governance 40 Mayor’s Charity Fund 2
Annual Governance Statement review 2018/19 25 Local Highways Maintenance Incentive Element 1
Annual Governance Statement review 2019/20 15 A59 Key route network 4

Urban Traffic Control 5
Integrated transport Capital Block Funding 2

Completion of work in progress 15

Follow up of recommendations 25

P
age 157

A
genda Item

 10



Page 24 of 25

DETAILED PLAN OF AUDIT WORK (2)
Days Days

SERVICE-SPECIFIC 409 Locality Services: Commissioned 24
Specialist Transport Unit 20

Adult Social Care 81 M58 Junction 1 Contract 4
Continuing Healthcare 10
Health and Social Care 10
Court of Protection/Appointeeships 15
LAS Finance Project 11 Investment and Employment 15
Liquid logic utilization 20 European Social Fund 15
Approval of the assessment of need 15

Public Health and Wellbeing 10
Children’s Social Care 56 Public Health Outcomes Framework 10
Children’s Social Care Inspection preparedness 15
Multi Agency Arrangements 15 Regeneration and Housing 10
Fostering 15 Housing Options Team 10
LCS Finance Project 11

Corporate Resources 93
Strategic Support 60 Local Authority Companies 15
Procurement 20 Transactional Services – HR 15
GDPR 20 Code of Conduct, Culture and Ethics 15
Commissioning 20 Health and Safety 10

Parking Services 13
Communities 25 Call Centre 15
Localities 25 Cash handling at one stop shops 10

P
age 158

A
genda Item

 10



Page 25 of 25

DETAILED PLAN OF AUDIT WORK (3)
Days

Schools and Families 35
Schools 20
Financial Management 15

MAIN FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 95
Accounts Payable 15
Non-Domestic Rates 15
Housing Benefits 20
Council Tax 20
Council Tax Reduction Scheme 10
Accounts receivable 15

Contingency 30

ADVICE AND GUIDANCE 12

TOTAL PLANNED AUDIT DAYS 771

P
age 159

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Issue 27 

 

Focus on Local Audit  

National Audit Office Report: Local Authority Governance 

Regular Briefing on New Developments 
 

Audit Committee Update 
Helping Audit Committees to Be Effective 

 
 

 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum  

 

February 2019 

Page 161

Agenda Item 11



 

Introduction 

 

Dear audit committee member, 

In the latest issue of Audit Committee Update, we highlight recent reports from external 

auditors, in particular the National Audit Office report on Local Authority Governance. We also 

take stock of local audit arrangements in the light of recent developments. Understanding the 

work of external auditors is a key responsibility of the audit committee, and supporting and 

overseeing the organisation’s response to the auditor recommendations is an essential role for 

the committee. 

The remainder of this issue focuses on keeping you up to date with our regular briefing 

covering recent reports and guidance.  

Overall, I hope you will find this issue interesting, informative and helpful in your work on the 

committee. 

Best wishes 

Diana Melville 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum  

 

Sharing this document  

Audit Committee Update is provided to subscribers of the Better Governance Forum for use 

within their organisations. Please feel free to circulate it widely to your organisation’s audit 

committee members and colleagues. It can also be placed on an intranet. It should not be 

shared with audit committee members of organisations that do not subscribe to the Better 

Governance Forum or disseminated more widely without CIPFA’s permission. 

Audit Committee Update is covered by CIPFA’s copyright and so should not be published on 

the internet without CIPFA’s permission. This includes the public agendas of audit committees. 

 

Receive our briefings directly 

This briefing will be sent to the main contact of organisations that subscribe to the CIPFA 

Better Governance Forum with a request that it be sent to all audit committee members. 

If you have an organisational email address (for example jsmith@mycouncil.gov.uk) then you 

will also be able to register on our website and download any of our guides and briefings 

directly. To register now, please visit www.cipfa.org/Register. 

 

  

Page 162

Agenda Item 11

mailto:jsmith@mycouncil.gov.uk
http://www.cipfa.org/Register


 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Previous issues of Audit Committee Update 

You can download all the previous issues from the CIPFA Better Governance Forum website. 

Click on the links below to find what you need. 

Principal Content Link 

Issues from 2010 and 2011– the content in these issues has been replaced by more 

recent issues. 

Issues from 2012 

Assurance Planning, Risk Outlook for 2012, Government Response to 

the Future of Local Audit Consultation 

Issue 7 

Commissioning, Procurement and Contracting Risks Issue 8 

Reviewing Assurance over Value for Money Issue 9 

Issues from 2013 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Updates to Guidance on 

Annual Governance Statements 

Issue 10 

Local Audit and Accountability Bill, the Implications for Audit 

Committees, Update of CIPFA’s Guidance on Audit Committees 

Issue 11 

Reviewing Internal Audit Quality, New CIPFA Publication, Audit 

Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police, 

Regular Briefing on Current Issues 

Issue 12 

Issues from 2014 

Reviewing the Audit Plan, Update on the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act, Briefing on Topical Governance Issues 

Issue 13 

External Audit Quality and Independence, Government Consultation 

on Local Audit Regulations, CIPFA’s Consultation on a New Counter 

Fraud Code, Regular Briefing on Current Issues 

Issue 14 

CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 

Corruption, the Audit Committee Role in Countering Fraud, Regular 

Briefing on Current Developments 

Issue 15 

Issues from 2015 

What Makes a Good Audit Committee Chair? Governance 

Developments in 2015 

Issue 16 

The Audit Committee Role in Reviewing the Financial Statements, 

Regular Briefing on Current Developments 

Issue 17 

Self-assessment and Improving Effectiveness, Appointment and 

Procurement of External Auditors, Regular Briefing on Current Issues 

Issue 18 

Issues from 2016 

Good Governance in Local Government – 2016 Framework, 

Appointing Local Auditors, Regular Briefing on Current Issues 

Issue 19 

CIPFA Survey on Audit Committees 2016, Regular Briefing on 

Current Issues 

Issue 20 

The Audit Committee and Internal Audit Quality, Briefing on Topical 

Issues 

Issue 21 

 

 

 

Page 163

Agenda Item 11

http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-7
http://www.cipfa.org/Services/Networks/Better-Governance-Forum/Corporate-Governance-Documentation/Audit-Committee-Update-Issue-8
http://www.cipfa.org/Services/Networks/Better-Governance-Forum/Corporate-Governance-Documentation/Audit-committee-update
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-10
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-11
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-12
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-13
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-14
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-15
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-16
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-17
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-18
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-19
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-20
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-21


 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Issues from 2017 

Developing an Effective Annual Governance Statement, Regular 

Briefing on Current Developments, Audit Committee Training 

Issue 22 

2017 edition of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, 

Understanding the Risks and Opportunities from Brexit, Recent 

Developments and Resources 

Issue 23 

Issues from 2018 

The Audit Committee Role in Risk Management, Regular Briefing on 

Current Developments 

Issue 24 

Developing an Effective Annual Governance Statement 

 

Issue 25 

CIPFA Position Statement on Audit Committees in Local Authorities 

and Police 2018 

Issue 26 

 

 

Workshops and training for audit committee members in 2019 from 
CIPFA 

Introduction to the knowledge and skills of the audit committee 

This training course will provide more in-depth knowledge of the core areas of an audit 

committee’s functions, including risk management, assurance planning and improving the 

effectiveness of the committee. 

 19 September Leeds 

 16 October London 

 17 October Birmingham 

 

Development day for police audit committees 

These events are suitable for members of the joint audit committees supporting police and 

crime commissioners (PCCs) and chief constables. These events are run in conjunction with 

CIPFA’s Police Network. 

 1 May York 

 2 May London 

 

Development day for local government audit committees 

This workshop is suitable for audit committee members or those working with the audit 

committee in local government. It will cover an update on new developments and legislation 

relevant to the audit committee role. In addition, it will feature the new governance 

framework, internal audit developments and other key topics. 

 13 November London 

 5 December Birmingham 

Other dates in late 2019 or early 2020 will be announced later in the year.  

 

The above events can all be accessed using prepaid places for the CIPFA Better Governance 

Forum. CIPFA events information and dates will be available on the website in due course. 

 

In-house training and facilitation 

In-house audit committee training and guidance tailored to your needs is available. Options 

include: 

• key roles and responsibilities of the committee 

• effective chairing and support for the committee 

• working with internal and external auditors 

Page 164

Agenda Item 11

http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-22
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/audit-committee-update/audit-committee-update-issue-23
https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/audit-committee-update/audit-committee-update-issue-24
https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/audit-committee-update/audit-committee-update-issue-25
https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/audit-committee-update/audit-committee-update-issue-26
http://www.cipfa.org/events


 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

• public sector internal audit standards 

• corporate governance 

• strategic risk management 

• value for money 

• fraud risks and counter fraud arrangements 

• reviewing the financial statements 

• assurance arrangements 

• improving impact and effectiveness. 

 

For further details, contact our in-house training team or email diana.melville@cipfa.org or 

visit the CIPFA website for further details on the support we have available for audit 

committees. 

 

 

New development from 2019: support for councillors in local 
authorities 

CIPFA is working with the Centre for Public Scrutiny to provide events and resources to 

support councillors in their roles. Events will be half-day sessions at a range of locations. 

Topics include financial reporting, governance and procurement. 

Further details will be available soon. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 165

Agenda Item 11

mailto:customerservices@cipfa.org
mailto:diana.melville@cipfa.org
https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees


 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

 

Focus on local audit 

 

Local audit in England 

 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act) made significant changes to the delivery 

of local audit in England. The Act abolished the Audit Commission and created a new regime to 

support local audit appointment by local authorities and NHS Trusts. Regulatory arrangements 

to oversee the work of auditors were passed to the National Audit Office (NAO), the Financial 

Reporting Council (FRC) and accountancy member bodies ICAEW and ICAS. Counter fraud 

arrangements, principally the National Fraud Initiative, were passed to the Cabinet Office. A 

new body Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) was charged with overseeing transitional 

contracts let by the Audit Commission and in 2016 was appointed as a sector-led body to offer 

a procurement service to principal local authorities. The Smaller Authorities Audit 

Appointments (SAAA) was established to lead a procurement and appointment for smaller 

authorities in 2016. NHS trusts and Clinical Commissioning Groups had to lead their own 

appointments but were offered the option of using a framework agreement. 

 

The complexity of the transition meant that only now are the new arrangements fully coming 

into effect. So how are the arrangements working out? In local government, 97% of principal 

local authorities chose to opt into the PSAA-led procurement, indicating that there was little 

appetite for individual appointments. As a result, independence in appointment has largely 

been protected. While the savings in fees have been welcomed by the sector, reservations 

have been expressed about the output of audit. In the recent report from the National Audit 

Office, Local Authority Governance, it was reported that heads of paid service, section 151 

officers and internal auditors raised concerns that the contribution of external audit to local 

governance had been reduced. A quarter of section 151 officers of single-tier and county 

councils felt that their audit fee was too low relative to the risk of their authority. The Code of 

Audit Practice, set by the NAO, is the basis for the local audit work performed in accordance 

with the Act and standards of auditing. During 2019, the NAO will be consulting on principles 

for a new Code which must be approved by Parliament before April 2020. It is likely that such 

issues will be considered during the consultation. 

 

In a separate development, the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 

(BEIS) commissioned the Kingman report to examine the role of the Financial Reporting 

Council as the regulator for auditing across all sectors of the UK. The report, Independent 

review of the Financial Reporting Council, was published in December 2018 and included a 

section on the FRC’s role in local audit. The report raised concerns that the FRC’s powers were 

weaker in relation to local audit in comparison to its other roles and also took into account 

broader concerns about the regulation of the audit sector in terms of ensuring audit quality 

and auditor independence. Accordingly, the Kingman report concluded: 

 

The structure is fragmented and piecemeal. Public sector specialist expertise is now dispersed 

around different bodies. The structure means also that no one body is looking for systemic 

problems, and there is no apparent co-ordination between parties to determine and act on 

emerging risks. 

 

The review recommended that the arrangements for local audit needed to be fundamentally 

rethought. A further report has now been commissioned by BEIS to review the quality and 

effectiveness of the UK audit market. 

 

Local audit in practice (England) 

 

The NAO has also recently published a report on Local Auditor Reporting, covering both local 

government and health sectors. Each year the local auditor must conclude whether local public 

bodies have arrangements to manage properly their business and finances and must report if 

they do not. The NAO report raises a number of concerns about the rise in the number of 

Page 166

Agenda Item 11

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-authority-governance-2/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-reporting-council-review-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-reporting-council-review-2018
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-auditor-reporting-in-england-2018/


 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

qualified conclusions on value for money arrangements across both sectors. At the same time, 

it expresses concerns about the effectiveness of an organisation’s response to a qualified audit 

report. The NAO report is currently the subject of a hearing of the Public Accounts Committee, 

so there will be a further report and recommendations in due course. 

 

Some of the key findings from the NAO report are summarised in the following table. 

 

Figure 1: Types of local authority, police and fire bodies receiving qualified 

conclusions on their value for money arrangements in 2017/18 

 

Type of body Except for  Adverse Total 

qualifications 

Percentage of 

bodies 

qualified  

Single-tier and 

county councils 

23 4 27 18% 

District councils 

 

9 0 9 4% 

Police, fire and 

other bodies 

3 1 4 3% 

 

 

It should also be noted that at the time of publication in January 2019, there were a further 20 

value for money conclusions yet to be issued, so the final number of qualifications could be 

higher. 

 

Figure 2: Reasons provided by local auditors for qualified value for money 

arrangements conclusions in local government bodies 2017/18 

 

Service 

performance 

(inspectorate 

/regulator) 

Governance 

arrangements 

Partnership 

working 

Finance 

(performance) 

Finance 

(sustainability) 

 

20 21 7 2 6 

 

 

Note: conclusions can be qualified for more than one reason, so the total number of 

qualification issues exceeds the total number of qualifications. 

 

The reasons for significant weaknesses in governance arrangements include bodies relying on 

interim staff to fill senior management posts for too long, poor management of major 

contracts, or lack of adequate member scrutiny of the executive’s decisions. 

 

The NAO describes the results as “disappointingly high” and comments that it “is clear that 

bodies need to be doing more to address the weaknesses being reported.” Those bodies that 

have not received a qualified conclusion should still consider the robustness of their value for 

money arrangements to ensure that they remain at least adequate. The NAO’s 

recommendation to the sector is particularly pertinent to audit committees: 

 

Local public bodies should take prompt and effective action in response to weaknesses in 

arrangements to secure value for money. This includes effective scrutiny and challenge by 

those charged with governance to hold the executive to account. 

 

Local audit in Wales  

 

The Wales Audit Office has issued two reports focusing on financial management and 

governance and internal audit in local councils in Wales. Internal Audit Arrangements at Town 

and Community Councils in Wales concluded that urgent improvements were needed to 

internal audit arrangements. Failings included one in five councils where the internal auditor 

Page 167

Agenda Item 11

http://www.audit.wales/publication/internal-audit-arrangements-town-and-community-councils-wales
http://www.audit.wales/publication/internal-audit-arrangements-town-and-community-councils-wales


 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

was insufficiently independent, one in ten did not have internal audit in place and two-thirds 

had inadequate terms of reference. 

 

In Financial Management and Governance – Town and Community Councils 2017/18, the WAO 

found that a significant number of councils had failed to comply with their statutory 

responsibilities for preparing accounts and ensuring that proper arrangements are made for 

the statutory audit. The number of qualified audit opinions doubled in 2017/18 to 340 councils, 

with auditors highlighting ongoing failings in financial management and governance. 

 

 

Local audit in Scotland 

 

Audit Scotland does not publish a summary report on the results of the audits of the accounts 

of Scottish local authorities and the rolling programme of best value reports. Its report Local 

Government in Scotland Financial Overview 2017/18 includes analysis of the financial position 

of local authorities and trends affecting the sector. 

 

Audit committee members should engage with the reports from Audit Scotland on best value 

for their authority and ensure that any recommendations are addressed positively. 

 

 

Key steps for audit committee members 

 

The external auditor is a vital contact for the audit committee and the external audit reports 

provide valuable insight and assurance on financial management and governance. All audit 

committee members should seek to have a good understanding of the role and responsibility 

of the external auditor. In particular, they should take seriously the audit opinion and any 

recommendations. They should review the action plan that is put forward to address the issues 

raised and then actively monitor its implementation. 

 

 

Diana Melville 

Governance Advisor 

 

  

Page 168

Agenda Item 11

http://www.audit.wales/publication/financial-management-and-governance-town-and-community-councils-2017-18
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/report/local-government-in-scotland-financial-overview-201718
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/report/local-government-in-scotland-financial-overview-201718


 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

 

Local authority governance 

 

In January 2019, the National Audit Office published a report examining the oversight 

arrangements of the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (the 

Department) of governance in local authorities and the robustness of the local arrangements 

themselves. The report, Local Authority Governance, was undertaken following concerns about 

financial sustainability of the sector and an issue of a section 114 notice at Northamptonshire 

County Council and a subsequent inspection of the authority. 

 

The report examined local arrangements, particularly those that support financial 

sustainability. These included: 

 operation and independence of the audit committee 

 priority given to ethical standards 

 effective internal audit  

 robust risk management arrangements 

 effective scrutiny and challenge 

 the right conditions for statutory officers to fulfil their roles. 

 

The NAO surveyed the external auditors of the authorities on the extent to which they were 

satisfied that these arrangements were effective. In 50% of authorities, the external auditors 

had no concerns and 19% had concerns on one area only. However, 30% of authorities were 

scored as having two or more concerns, including 9% with four or more areas of concern. The 

findings from the survey of external auditors was further supported by a survey of section 151 

officers and a range of focus groups and interviews with stakeholders. 

 

While an authority with multiple concerns flagged was more likely to have a qualified 

conclusion on value for money arrangements, many did not. As a result, the NAO is keen to 

point out that “an unqualified conclusion does not mean that governance does not need to 

improve.”  

 

The context for the study is the increased risk profile of many authorities as they have reduced 

spending and sought to generate new income in response to funding and demand pressures. 

The report concludes that poor governance can make the difference between coping and not 

coping with financial and service pressures. 

 

Of particular interest to audit committee members will be the findings relating to the 

effectiveness of audit committees. The NAO asked both external auditors and section 151 

officers a number of questions about the operation and effectiveness of the committee. The 

table below shows results for four key areas. 

 

External auditors’ views on the characteristics of audit committees 

 

 

 

Strongly 

disagree 

% 

Disagree 

 

% 

Neither 

agree 

nor 

disagree 

% 

Agree 

 

% 

Strongly 

agree 

% 

Don’t 

know 

% 

Membership that are 

properly trained to fulfil their 

role 

3 18 23 43 5 9 

The audit committee 

provides sufficient 

independent assurance to 

the council on the 

robustness of the authority’s 

overall governance 

arrangements 

1 7 19 61 10 2 

Page 169

Agenda Item 11

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-authority-governance-2/


 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

 

 

 

Strongly 

disagree 

% 

Disagree 

 

% 

Neither 

agree 

nor 

disagree 

% 

Agree 

 

% 

Strongly 

agree 

% 

Don’t 

know 

% 

Willingness to make 

recommendations for the 

improvement of risk, 

governance and control 

1 6 19 57 15 2 

Audit committee 

recommendations are acted 

on by the council 

0 4 15 66 8 7 

 

 

Across a range of questions there appears to be concern with a significant minority of audit 

committees. Only 71% of authorities’ committees were judged to be providing sufficient 

assurance. CIPFA’s own survey of audit committees in 2016 also identified the need for better 

training of audit committee members. The results of our survey can be viewed on the CIPFA 

website. 

 

 

The report makes recommendations to the Department to work with local authorities and other 

stakeholders to assess the implications of and possible responses to the issues identified, 

including: 

 

 the status of section 151 officers and the efficacy of their statutory reporting 

arrangements 

 the effectiveness of audit committees and how to increase the use of independent 

members 

 the effectiveness of overview and scrutiny functions and ways to enhance their impact 

and 

 the sustainability and future role of internal audit. 

 

The NAO report will be followed by a hearing of the Public Accounts Committee in due course 

and a further report. Members of the study team will be speaking at CIPFA’s governance 

events in February and March and will share further details of their findings. 

 

 

 

Diana Melville 

Governance Advisor 

Page 170

Agenda Item 11

https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees
https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees


 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Recent developments you may need to know about 

 

Reports, recommendations and guidance 
 

Local Government Ethical Standards 

 

The Committee on Standards in Public Life has published a report on their review of standards 

arrangements in English local authorities. The report, Local Government Ethical Standards, 

acknowledges that the vast majority of councillors and officers maintain high standards of 

conduct but that there is clear evidence of misconduct by some councillors, particularly around 

bullying and harassment. 

 

While the report concludes that local responsibility for standards should be maintained, it 

recommends a number of improvements, including: 

 a new model code of conduct 

 extending regulations about the disclosure of interests 

 strengthening and clarifying the role of the independent person 

 a new sanction to suspend a councillor for up to six months 

 disciplinary protection for the statutory officers in authorities (monitoring officer, 

section 151 officer and head of paid service) should be extended to all disciplinary 

action 

 amendments to the Transparency Code to cover disclosures of code of conduct 

complaints and changes to whistleblowing. 

 

In addition, there are 15 best practice recommendations made to local authorities. 

 

Audit committee members should take account of the report as an individual councillor or 

independent member, but they should also be aware of the report when considering the 

strength of their authority’s ethical framework for the Annual Governance Statement. 

 

 

Streamlining the Accounts: Guidance for Local Authorities 

 

CIPFA has worked with the Society of London Treasurers, the Society of District Council 

Treasurers, and Grant Thornton LLP to offer guidance to local authorities. CIPFA has made 

available a pre-publication draft to support practitioners. 

 

Members of audit committees may find the section on how to improve presentation and layout 

of the financial statements to make them more user-friendly of particular interest. 

 

 

Measured Resilience in English Authorities – CIPFA 

 

In July 2018, CIPFA consulted on a proposal to publish an index of resilience of English 

councils to support the sector. An updated version was released to finance directors in 

December 2018 to enable them to view their position relative to others on a range of 

measures linked to financial risk. 

 

CIPFA has also issued a briefing note that summarises key results. The measures include 

analysis of reserves and the flexibility of the council’s budget: the proportion of net revenue 

expenditure accounted for by social care and interest payments. The analysis will be of interest 

to audit committees considering their council’s resilience risks. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 171

Agenda Item 11

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/technical-panels-and-boards/local-authority-accounting-panel
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/measured-resilience-in-english-authorities


 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Auditors’ analysis of financial sustainability 

 

The National Audit Office has published a number of interactive charts based on their analysis 

for their report Financial Sustainability of Local Authorities. Financial sustainability of local 

authorities, 2018 visualisation. 

 

Audit Scotland has also published interactive charts to accompany their financial overview 

report on local government. Local government in Scotland, financial visualisation. 

 

National Local Growth Assurance Framework 2019 

 

The Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government has published a new assurance 

framework for Mayoral Combined Authorities with a Single Pot funding arrangement and Local 

Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs). 

 

As part of the framework, LEPs are required to establish appropriate audit committee 

arrangements which fit their governance model. For example, an LEP that is part of a Mayoral 

Combined Authority would use the audit committee of the combined authority. Other models 

could lead to the establishment of a separate audit committee or use of the audit committee of 

the accountable body. National local growth assurance framework. 

 

 

CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker 2018 

 

The CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker (CFaCT) is an annual survey of the fraud and 

corruption detected in local authorities across the UK. It examines levels of fraud and 

corruption detected each financial year, types of fraud and emerging trends. CIPFA estimates 

that over £301m worth of fraud has been detected or prevented within the public sector in 

2017/18. CIPFA Counter Fraud Centre. 

 

National Fraud Initiative 

 

Reports from the latest data matching investigations in the UK are now available. The reports 

show the fraud detected by the analysis of local government and other public sector data sets. 

 England report 

 Northern Ireland report 

 Scotland report 

 Wales report 

 

 

Cross-government Fraud Landscape Annual Report 2018 

 

This report from the Cabinet Office focuses on the public sector fraud landscape in central 

government and the levels of fraud and error loss outside of the tax and welfare system. The 

levels of detected fraud and frauds prevented have both increased, and progress has been 

made to improve counter fraud capability in central government departments.  

 

 

Principles of good administrative practice 

 

Updated guidance issued by the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman sets out six 

principles that should shape the delivery and administration of public services; this is a useful 

reference when considering the effectiveness of internal control arrangements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 172

Agenda Item 11

https://www.nao.org.uk/highlights/financial-sustainability-of-local-authorities-2018-visualisation/
https://www.nao.org.uk/highlights/financial-sustainability-of-local-authorities-2018-visualisation/
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/local-government-in-scotland-financial-overview-201718
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-local-growth-assurance-framework
https://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fraud-and-corruption-tracker
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-fraud-initiative-reports
https://www.niauditoffice.gov.uk/national-fraud-initative
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/report/the-national-fraud-initiative-in-scotland-201617
http://www.audit.wales/publication/national-fraud-initiative-wales
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cross-government-fraud-landscape-annual-report-2018
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/guidance-notes/principles-of-good-administrative-practice


 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Cyber security board toolkit: five questions for your board's agenda 

 

This is a range of questions that the National Cyber Security Centre believes will help generate 

constructive cyber security discussions between board members and their Chief Information 

Security Officers. 

 

The briefing also explains good practice and how the measures improve security. 

 

Page 173

Agenda Item 11

https://www.ncsc.gov.uk/guidance/board-toolkit-five-questions-your-boards-agenda


 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

 

 

Diana Melville 

Governance Advisor  

CIPFA  

77 Mansell Street 

London 

E1 8AN 
cipfa.org 

Certificate No. 
5631/06 

Published by: 

CIPFA \ THE CHARTERED INSTITUTE OF PUBLIC FINANCE AND ACCOUNTANCY 

77 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN 

020 7543 5600 \ www.cipfa.org 

© 2019 CIPFA 

No responsibility for loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from action as a result of any 
material in this publication can be accepted by the authors or publisher. 

While every care has been taken in the preparation of this publication, it may contain errors for which the 
publisher and authors cannot be held responsible.  

Apart from any fair dealing for the purposes of research or private study, or criticism or review, as permitted 
under the Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988, this publication may be reproduced, stored or 
transmitted, in any form or by any means, only with the prior permission in writing of the publishers, or in 
the case of reprographic reproduction in accordance with the terms of licences issued by the Copyright 
Licensing Agency Ltd. Enquiries concerning reproduction outside those terms should be sent to the 
publishers at the above mentioned address. 

 

 

Page 174

Agenda Item 11


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 External Audit Planning Report 2018-2019
	5 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing Paper
	Government and economic news
	Accounting, auditing and governance
	Regulation news
	Other
	Contents at a glance
	Key questions for the Audit Committee
	Find out more

	6 Local Government Ethical Standards
	7 Revenue and Capital Budget Update - Treasury Management Position to January 2019
	8 Corporate Risk Management
	Enc. 1 for Corporate Risk Management

	9 Risk and Audit Service Performance Report
	Enc. 1 for Risk and Audit Service Performance Report_v1

	10 Internal Audit Charter and Audit Plan
	Enc. 1 for Internal Audit Charter and Audit Plan

	11 CIPFA - Audit Committee Briefing Report

	Button 5: 
	Button 6: 
	Button 7: 
	Button 8: 
	Button 9: 
	Button 10: 


